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Ablerex Electronics Co., Ltd. 
 

Procedure for the 2024 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting 
 
 

 
Call the Meeting to Order 

Chairperson Remarks 

1. Reports on Company Affairs 

2. Matters to be approved 

3. Matters to be Discussed 

4. Extemporary Motions 

5. Adjournment 
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Agenda of  Annual Shareholders’ Meeting 

 
Type:  Entity shareholders’ meeting 
Time:  9:00 a.m. on June 25, 2024 (Tuesday) 
Place: 1F, No. 219-2, Zhong Xing Rd. Sec.3, XinDian Dist., New Taipei City 
 (The Koos Hotel) 
 
Call the Meeting to Order (report the total number of  shares present) 
 
 
Chairperson Remarks 
 
 
Reports on Company Affairs 
Item 1:  The 2023 Business Report. 
Item 2:  The Audit Committee’s Review Report on the 2023 Financial Statements. 
Item 3:  The 2023 Directors’ and Employees’ Compensation. 
 
 
Matters to be Approved 
Item 1:  Adoption of  the 2023 Business Report and Financial Statement. 
Item 2:  Adoption of  the Proposal for Distribution of  2023 Profits. 
 
 
Matters to be Discussed 
Item 1: Amendment to the “Rules and Procedures of Shareholders' Meeting”. 
Item 2: Amendment to the “Articles of Incorporation”. 
 
 
Extemporary Motions 
 
 
Adjournment 
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Reports on Company Affairs 
 

Report No. 1 

Title: 2023 Business Report. 

Explanation: Please refer to Attachment 1 (page 6~9) 

 

 

Report No. 2 

Title: Audit Committee’s Review Report on the 2023 Financial Statements. 

Explanation:  

1. The 2023 Business Report, Financial Statements and Profit distribution table have been audited and 
approved by Audit Committee.  

2. Please refer to the report as per Attachment 2 (page 10) 

 

 

Report No. 3 

Title: The 2023 Directors’ and Employees’ Compensation 

Explanation: 

1. The amount (Directors’ and Employees’ Compensation are not included) of  2023 net profit before 
tax is NTD114,178,963. 

2. After the remuneration committee and Board of  Directors reviewed the regulations and the 
company's operating performance in 2023, it’s going to propose Employees’ Compensation NTD 
6,864,854 (6.01%) as 6% (not less) of  net earnings before tax, it meets the requirements of  the 
“Articles of  Incorporation” of  the Company. Directors’ Compensation NTD 2,228,400 (1.98%) as 
2% (not exceed) of  net earnings before tax, also meets the requirements of  the “Articles of  
Incorporation” of  the Company. 
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Matters to be Approved 
 

Proposal No. 1: 【Proposed by the board of  directors】 

Title: Adoption of  the 2023 Business Report and Financial Statement 

Explanation: 

1. Please refer to the 2023 Business Report and Financial Statement as per Attachment 1 (page 6~9). 

2. The compilation of  the Ablerex’s 2023 Financial Statement and Consolidated Financial Statement is 
completed and was expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements in the report issued by Lin, 
Se-Kai/CPA and Lai, Zhong-Xi /CPA of  PwC Taiwan. 

3. The CPA Audit Report and the above mentioned Financial Report as per Attachment 3 and 4 (page 
11~24 & 25~38). 

4. Adoption requested. 

 

Resolution: 

 

 

Proposal No. 2 

Title: Adoption of  the Proposal for Distribution of  2023 Profits 

Explanation:  

1. The table of  the 2023 Earnings Distribution as per Attachment 5 (page 39). 

2. 2023 profit distribution plans are as the following: Cash dividend to shareholders is NTD 2.00 per 
share with a total NTD 90,000,000. After this distribution plan is approved by the shareholders' 
meeting, it is proposed to authorize the Chairman to set Record date and the cash dividend 
distribution amount is up to NTD, The balances which is less than NTD 1.0 will be treated as 
undistributed surplus. 

3. Adoption requested. 

 

 

Resolution: 
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Matters to be Discussed 
 

Proposal 1 

Title: Amendment to the “Rules and Procedures of Shareholders' Meeting”. 

Explanation: 

1. According to Taipei Exchange (2023.3.23) Issue No. 11200552441, it is proposed to amend some 
provisions of  the “Rules and Procedures of Shareholders' Meeting”. 

2. In conjunction with the amendment of the Law and regulations to comply with the requirements of 
the “Rules and Procedures of Shareholders' Meeting” by FSC.  

3. The amendment reference table of  " Rules and Procedures of Shareholders' Meeting " as per 
Attachment 6 (Page 40~41). 

4. Discussion and resolution requested. 

 

Resolution: 
 

Proposal 2 

Title: Amendment to the Article of  Incorporation 

Explanation: 

1. According to Article No. 208 and No. 18 of  Company Act and relative regulation, it is proposed to 
amend some provisions of  the “Article of  Incorporation” of  the Company. 

2. Amendment reference table for “Article of  Incorporation” as per Attachment 7 (Page 42). 

3. Discussion and resolution requested. 

Resolution: 
 
 

 
 
 

Extemporary Motions 
 

 
Adjournment 
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Attachment 1: 

2023 Business Report 

Ablerex Electronics Co., Ltd. 
2023 Business Report 

 
1. Guidelines for management: 

In 2023, our group is poised to persistently pursue our strategy of localization. By combining our rapid, 
professional, and integrated technical services, we will further cultivate the Ablerex brand, infusing it 
with distinctive local features to meet and exceed market expectations with our products and services. 
In our foundry operations, we leverage our independent technological prowess to meet the different 
requirements of customers. In the realm of research and development, we are dedicated to augmenting 
the power capabilities of our products, pioneering in the creation of expansive, industrial-grade, and 
modular solutions, and expanding our product assortment to be more adaptable and comprehensive. 
On the manufacturing side, we will continue to innovate with intelligent solutions and integrate 
automated production systems to lessen our reliance on manual labor, thereby enhancing operational 
efficiency and energy efficiency. This initiative is a step towards our commitment to a greener, more 
sustainable manufacturing environment. 

 

2. Implementation 

As the COVID-19 pandemic abates and restrictions are progressively lifted worldwide, we are 
witnessing a cautious resumption of global economic activities. Yet, the pace of recovery remains 
uneven across nations. Notably, mainland China’s economy continues to exhibit sluggishness 
post-pandemic, with both consumer spending and investment lagging. Consequently, our group’s sales 
in the mainland market have not met expectations, indicating a downturn. Furthermore, emerging 
markets and our ODM business are experiencing a deceleration in order dispatches. This is attributed 
to the tepid resurgence of core market demand and the overbooking-induced inventory shortages 
prevalent during the pandemic. In Japan, adherence to stringent buyer quality policies has necessitated 
multiple shipment postponements for product revisions, culminating in revenues trailing our objectives. 

In the domestic landscape, 2023 is set to witness a downturn in project revenue, attributed to a 
decrease in large-scale initiatives and project delays due to owners’ concurrent ventures. These setbacks 
are likely to hinder our company’s construction progress, resulting in the inability to finalize projects 
and recognize their revenue by year-end. The solar power converter market is also experiencing a slump, 
impacted by the dual challenges of land acquisition difficulties for project sites and the influence of 
electoral dynamics. The construction of solar power generation systems is encountering developmental 
hurdles, and the market for equipment has become fiercely competitive, leading to a ‘red sea’ scenario. 
This intense competition is further affecting the sales trajectory of these products. 
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Embracing a ‘one-stop’ model for sales, production, and research has seamlessly interconnected 
marketing, business, R&D, and production from the outset. This integration has honed the precision 
and market recognition of our product positioning, expedited the mass production timeline, and 
enhanced overall efficiency. Currently, we’ve introduced high-value, cost-effective solutions for 
entry-level segments, steadily reclaiming our competitive stance. Our mid-range and premium offerings 
are undergoing a generational shift, not only preserving our technological edge but also boosting 
market receptivity and customer satisfaction. 

In manufacturing, our commitment to refining supply chain management, redefining product design 
and procurement strategies, and mitigating material shortages and inventory challenges remains 
unwavering. The adoption of Industry 4.0 principles has markedly improved our data collection, issue 
identification, and resolution processes. These advancements are systematically resolving production 
bottleneck 

3. Operating Performance in 2023 

In 2023, the company reported a consolidated operating income of NT$2,925,183 thousand, marking a 
4.34% decrease from the previous year’s NT$3,057,767 thousand. The consolidated net profit after tax 
stood at NT$90,591 thousand, which is 20.41% lower than the prior period’s NT$113,824 thousand. 
(ref. table below) 

Unit: NTD thousands 

 

4. Revenue and Expenses in 2023 

(1) Sales Revenue 

The operating income comprised sales revenue and labor income in 2023. A comparative analysis with 
the previous year reveals a mixed performance across our five key product lines. Revenues from 
uninterruptible power systems, solar power converters, and project-based ventures experienced a 
downturn. Conversely, active filter sales, labor income, and other categories (including components and 
batteries) saw an uptick. However, the scale of the decline outweighed the growth, culminating in a 
total revenue of NT$2,925,183 thousand for 2023. This represents a decrease of NT$132,584 thousand 

Item 2023 2022 Growth Rate(%) 
Sales Revenue 2,925,183  3,057,767  -4.34% 
Gross profit 747,438  723,876  3.25% 
Operating income 110,716  121,155  -8.62% 
Net income 90,591  113,824  -20.41% 
Profit attributable to parenting company 87,686  114,704  -23.55% 
EPS (NTD)-after tax 1.95  2.55  -23.53% 
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or 4.34% from 2022’s NT$3,057,767 thousand. Notably, project ventures and solar power converter 
sales witnessed significant drops of NT$104,809 thousand and NT$99,033 thousand respectively, 
driving the overall annual revenue decline. 

 

(2) Operating Costs 

The total operating expenses amounted to NT$2,814,467 thousand in 2023, a 4.16% reduction from 
2022’s NT$2,936,612 thousand. This includes a decrease in operating costs by NT$156,146 thousand 
and an increase in operating expenses by NT$34,001 thousand. The drop in operating costs primarily 
mirrors the decline in operating income, yet the 1.88 percentage points rise in gross profit margin has 
been a significant positive factor. As a result, our operating gross profit for 2023 actually saw an 
increase of NT$23,562 thousand over the previous year. Research and development expenses have 
continued to climb, aligning with our strategic focus on innovation. Marketing expenses have also 
surged notably as business operations normalize post-pandemic and due to inflationary pressures. 

 

5. Profitability Analysis 

Major indicators of  operating performance in 2023 are as the table below: 
Unit: %, ppts 

 

In 2023, despite a downturn in turnover, our company’s gross sales profit margin improved to 25.55%, 
up by 1.88 percentage points from 2022’s 23.67%. This increase is attributed to higher product selling 
prices, cost structure optimization, and enhanced production efficiency. Consequently, our sales gross 
profit rose, better than the trend of declining turnover. Nevertheless, operating expenses saw an uptick 
from the previous year, with the operating expense rate growing by 2.06 percentage points. This surge 
contributed to a reduction in both overall operating profit and the operating profit rate. Additionally, 
non-operating income was adversely affected by exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations, leading to 
a year-over-year decrease in net profit and net profit margins. Consequently, the performance metrics 
related to assets and capital operations fell short of the previous year’s achievements. 

 

Item 2023 2022 Growth Rate(%) 
Return on Assets 2.88% 3.49% -0.61ppts 
Return on Shareholders’ Equity 5.25% 7.00% -1.75ppts 
Operating Income to Capital (%) 24.60% 26.92% -2.32ppts 
Profit before Tax to Capital (%) 25.92% 31.41% -5.49ppts 
Net Profit Margin 3.10% 3.72% -0.62ppts 
EPS (NT$)-after tax 1.95 2.55 -23.53% 
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6. Research and Development Status 

The company steadfastly adheres to the principle of  technological independence, with our R&D 
department actively collaborating with the academic sector to pioneer the development of  sophisticated, 
high-capacity, three-phase power electronics technology. This initiative is aimed at bolstering our 
foundational expertise in power conversion, embodying our "designed for mass production" ethos to 
enhance the production acumen and market-driven approach of  our R&D team, thereby expediting the 
commercialization of  our technological innovations. Currently, our design philosophy is evolving 
towards creating products that are not only lighter and smarter but also modular and interconnected. 
This strategic direction has significantly boosted the cost-effectiveness and market competitiveness of  
our offerings. A landmark achievement in this journey is the successful design, development, and 
production launch of  a 200KVA single-unit three-phase UPS system, marking a new zenith in our 
prowess in the development and manufacturing of  power electronic products. Moreover, our direct 
involvement in the operational aspects of  domestic power auxiliary services has allowed us to 
continually refine the performance of  our grid-level energy storage solutions, yielding remarkable 
outcomes. Looking ahead, we are poised to play a pivotal role in the evolution of  Taiwan's power grid, 
progressively asserting our influence in shaping its future. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chairman: Steven Hsu   Manager: M.Z. Hwang   Accounting: Emma Liao 
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Attachment 2 :  

2023 Audit Committee's Review Report 

Audit Committee’s Review Report 
 

The Board of  Directors has prepared the Company’s 2023 Business Report, Financial 
Statements, and proposal for allocation of  profits. Lin, Se-Kai/CPA and Lai, Zhong-Xi/CPA, 
The CPA firm of  PricewaterhouseCooper was retained to audit Ablerex’s Financial Statements 
and has issued an audit report relating to the Financial Statements. The Business Report, 
Financial Statements, and profit allocation proposal have been reviewed and determined to be 
correct and accurate by the Audit Committee members of  Ablerex Electronics Co., Ltd. 
According to Article 14-4 of  the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of  the Company 
Law, we hereby submit this report. 
 
Ablerex Electronics Co., Ltd. 
 
 
Chairman of  the Audit Committee: Sir Y.J. Ding (Signature) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
March 13, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(As per Page 9 of  Chinese version of  “Handbook for the 2024 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting) 
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’

REPORT

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
For the convenience of readers and for information purpose only, the auditors’ report and the accompanying 
financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in 
the Republic of China. In the event of any discrepancy between the English version and the original Chinese 
version or any differences in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language auditors’ report and 
financial statements shall prevail. 

 

Attachment 3 :  

Parent Company Only Financial Statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE 

 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. 
 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of Ablerex 
Electronics Co.,Ltd. as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related parent company 
only statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the 
years then ended, and notes to the parent company only financial statements, including a 
summary of material accounting policies.  

 

In our opinion, the accompanying parent company only financial statements present fairly, 
in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023 
and 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Securities Issuers. 
 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial 
Statement Audit and Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and 
Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditors’responsibilities for the audit of the parent company 
only financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountants of the 
Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Company’s 2023 parent company only financial statements. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the parent company only 
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financial statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. Key audit matters for the Company’s 2023 parent 
company only financial statements of the current period are stated as follows: 
 

Appropriateness of cut-off of project construction revenue 

Description 

Please refer to Note 4(25) for accounting policy on revenue recognition and Note 6(18) 
for composition of operating revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2023, the 
Company’s project construction revenue amounted to NT$1,124,639 thousand, 
accounting for 47% of net sales. 
 

The Company’s operating revenue is comprised of sales revenue and project construction 
revenue. The main composition of the project construction revenue is the sale of large 
equipment and installation related projects. The project needs to be completed through the 
Company’s installation of large-scale equipment, and after the relevant documents are 
executed by both parties and the client can obtain and consume the benefits provided by 
the asset, the Company will have deemed to have completed the contractual performance 
obligations and can recognize the project construction revenue. Due to the fact that the 
income of the Company’s project construction involves manual operation, it may result to 
inappropriate timing recognition of revenue. Considering that the amount of income 
recognized by the Company’s project construction in a timely manner has a significant 
impact on the parent company only financial statements, we have deemed the 
appropriateness of the project construction income as one of the significant audit matters 
for the year. 
 

How our audit addressed the matter 
We performed the following audit procedures in order to assess cut-off of project 
construction revenue: 
1. Assessed and obtained an understanding of the Company’s internal control procedures 

of the project construction revenue recognition, and confirmed the related internal 
controls were performed effectively. 
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2. Performed cut-off test on project construction revenue transactions, and selected 
samples to check that the project construction revenue had been recorded in the proper 
period accordingly. 

3. Tested the accuracy and completeness of project construction list and traced to a related 
document that can prove revenue in order to confirm that the recognition amount and 
timing were appropriate. 

Valuation of allowance for inventory valuation losses 

Description 

Please refer to Note 4(11) for accounting policy on inventory valuation, Note 5(2) for 
accounting estimates and assumption uncertainty in relation to inventory valuation, and 
Note 6(5) for the details of allowance for inventory valuation losses. Also, please refer to 
Note 4(12) for accounting policies on investments accounted for using equity method, 
Note 6(6) for details of investments accounted for using equity method, and Note 13(3) 
for disclosure of investments accounted for using equity method. 
 

As of December 31, 2023, the Company’s inventories and allowance for inventory 
valuation losses amounted to $894,955 thousand and $89,920 thousand, respectively, and 
the Company’s investments accounted for using equity method amounted to $747,235 
thousand, of which the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Ablerex Electronics 
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd, of $425,417 thousand was the major operating entity. The Company 
and its directly wholly-owned subsidiary, Ablerex Electronics (Suzhou ) Co., Ltd, are 
engaged in the design, manufacture and sales of uninterruptible power supply systems, 
equipment to power quality devices and others. Due to the rapid technological innovations 
and the competitive nature of the market, there is a higher risk of inventory losses due to 
the market value decline or obsolescence. The Company recognises inventories at the 
lower of cost and net realizable value. Obsolete or slow-moving inventories were assessed 
individually. The Company’s and its subsidiary’s estimation and determination of the net 
realizable value of inventories are subjected to management’s judgement, involves a high 
level of uncertainty. Considering that the inventories and inventory valuation loss of the 
Company and its directly wholly-owned subsidiary, Ablerex Electronics (Suzhou) Co., 
Ltd, which is accounted for using equity method, were significant to the parent company 
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only financial statements, it was identified as a key audit matter. 
 

How our audit addressed the matter 
We performed the following audit procedures in order to assess the adequacy of the 
measurement of net realisable value and provision on allowance for inventory valuation 
losses: 
1. Assessed the reasonableness of policies relating to the provision of allowance for 

inventory valuation loses and procedures based on our understanding of the Company’s 
and its subsidiary’s operation and industry. 

2. Verified the accuracy of the inventory aging report and net realisable value report in 
order to confirm that the information in the reports were consistent with the Company’s 
and its subsidiary’s inventory policies. 

3. Checked the appropriateness of the estimation basis adopted by the Company and its 
subsidiary for the evaluation of the net realizable value, verified the accuracy of 
inventory selling and purchase prices, and recalculated and evaluated the 
reasonableness of allowance for inventory valuation losses. 

4. Reviewed the appropriateness of the estimation basis for the evaluation of net realisable 
value, randomly checked supporting documents of product sales and purchases and 
recalculated and evaluated the reasonableness of allowance for inventory valuation 
losses. 

 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the 
consolidated financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company 
only financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation 
of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of parent company only financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company 
only financial statements. 
 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, 
we exercise professional judgement and professional skepticism throughout the audit.We 
also: 
1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 
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2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
parent company only financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the parent company only 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the parent 
company only financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the parent company only 
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 
 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

Lin, Se-Kai  Lai, Chung-Hsi 

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan 

March 13, 2024 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
The accompanying parent company only financial statements are not intended to present the financial 
position and results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and 
practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such financial statements may differ from those 
generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. Accordingly, the 
accompanying parent company only financial statements and independent auditors’ report are not intended 
for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally 
accepted in the Republic of China, and their applications in practice. 
As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot 
accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or 
misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.  
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. 
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

 

 

      December 31, 2023   December 31, 2022  
 Assets  Notes  AMOUNT   %   AMOUNT   %  

 Current assets                 

1100 Cash and cash equivalents  6(1)  $ 121,933   4   $ 122,736   4  

1136 Current financial assets at amortised 

cost 

 6(3) and 8 

  3,562   -    194   -  

1150 Notes receivable, net  6(4)   2,959   -    4,969   -  

1170 Accounts receivable, net  6(4)   341,260   11    490,125   14  

1180 Accounts receivable due from related 

parties, net 

 6(4) and 7 

  195,686   6    260,720   8  

1200 Other receivables     3   -    -   -  

1210 Other receivables - related parties  7   69,432   2    55,443   2  

1220 Current tax assets     129   -    -   -  

130X Inventories, net  6(5)   805,035   26    851,965   25  

1410 Prepayments     6,065   -    13,315   -  

11XX Total current assets     1,546,064   49    1,799,467   53  

 Non-current assets                 

1517 Non-current financial assets at fair 

value through other comprehensive 

income 

 6(2) 

  201,639   6    243,536   7  

1550 Investments accounted for under 

equity method 

 6(6) 

  747,235   24    710,984   21  

1600 Property, plant and equipment  6(7)   562,247   18    497,216   14  

1755 Right-of-use assets  6(8)   2,583   -    8,212   -  

1780 Intangible assets     29,782   1    29,626   1  

1840 Deferred income tax assets  6(25)   47,598   1    42,642   1  

1900 Other non-current assets  6(9)   19,648   1    93,178   3  

15XX Total non-current assets     1,610,732   51    1,625,394   47  

1XXX Total assets    $ 3,156,796   100   $ 3,424,861   100  
 

(Continued)
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. 
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements. 
 

 

     December 31, 2023   December 31, 2022  
 Liabilities and Equity  Notes  AMOUNT   %   AMOUNT   %  

 Current liabilities                 

2100 Short-term borrowings  6(10)  $ 550,000   18   $ 465,000   14  

2110 Short-term notes and bills payable  6(11)   -   -    69,845   2  

2130 Current contract liabilities  6(18)   210,732   7    276,289   8  

2150 Notes payable     256   -    3,689   -  

2170 Accounts payable     290,938   9    337,574   10  

2180 Accounts payable - related parties  7   106,896   3    219,211   6  

2200 Other payables  6(12)   118,698   4    119,037   4  

2230 Current income tax liabilities     -   -    8,901   -  

2250 Provisions for liabilities - current  6(13)   73,082   2    65,963   2  

2280 Current lease liabilities  7   2,493   -    5,895   -  

2300 Other current liabilities, others     4,211   -    9,983   -  

21XX Total current liabilities     1,357,306   43    1,581,387   46  

 Non-current liabilities                 

2570 Deferred income tax liabilities  6(25)   102,495   3    92,975   3  

2580 Non-current lease liabilities  7   153   -    2,465   -  

2640 Net defined benefit liability, non-

current 

 6(14) 

  11,628   1    11,831   -  

25XX Total non-current liabilities     114,276   4    107,271   3  

2XXX Total Liabilities     1,471,582   47    1,688,658   49  

 Equity                 

 Share capital  6(15)               

3110 Common stock     450,000   14    450,000   13  

 Capital surplus  6(16)               

3200 Capital surplus     713,679   23    713,416   21  

 Retained earnings  6(17)               

3310 Legal reserve     236,999   7    225,053   6  

3320 Special reserve     -   -    61,427   2  

3350 Unappropriated retained earnings     211,192   7    163,863   5  

 Other equity interest                 

3400 Other equity interest     73,344   2    122,444   4  

3XXX Total equity     1,685,214   53    1,736,203   51  

 Significant commitments and contingent 

liabilities 

 7 and 9 

              

 Significant events after the balance 

sheet date 

 11 

              

3X2X Total liabilities and equity    $ 3,156,796   100   $ 3,424,861   100  
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. 
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except earnings per share amount) 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements. 
 

 

      Year ended December 31  

     2023   2022  

Items  Notes  AMOUNT   %   AMOUNT   %  

4000 Sales revenue  6(18) and 7 $ 2,383,803   100  $ 2,714,662   100 
5000 Operating costs  6(5)(23)(24) and 7 (  1,980,339 ) ( 83 ) (  2,279,823 ) ( 84) 
5950 Gross profit from operations    403,464   17   434,839   16 
 Operating expenses  6(23)(24) and 7            
6100 Selling expenses   (  105,997 ) ( 4 ) (  106,826 ) ( 4) 
6200 General and administrative expenses   (  68,367 ) ( 3 ) (  73,030 ) ( 3) 
6300 Research and development expenses   (  170,979 ) ( 7 ) (  165,063 ) ( 6) 
6000 Total operating expenses   (  345,343 ) ( 14 ) (  344,919 ) ( 13) 
6900 Net operating income    58,121   3   89,920   3 
 Non-operating income and expenses              
7100 Interest income  6(19) and 7  2,150   -   1,383   - 
7010 Other income  6(20) and 7  7,694   -   8,401   - 
7020 Other gains and losses  6(21)  1,794   -   19,048   1 
7050 Finance costs  6(22) and 7 (  9,686 )  -  (  6,574 )  - 
7070 Share of profit of associates and 

joint ventures accounted for using 
equity method, net 

 6(6) 

 45,013   2   21,632   1 
7000 Total non-operating income and 

expenses 
  

 46,965   2   43,890   2 
7900 Profit before income tax    105,086   5   133,810   5 
7950 Income tax expense  6(25) (  17,400 ) ( 1 ) (  19,106 ) ( 1) 
8200 Profit for the year   $ 87,686   4  $ 114,704   4 

 Other comprehensive income              
 Components of other comprehensive 

income that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss 

  

           
8311 Gains on remeasurements of defined 

benefit plans 
 6(14) 

$ 202   -  $ 5,941   - 
8316 Unrealised gains from investments 

in equity instruments measured at 
fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

 6(2) 

(  41,897 ) ( 2 )  162,536   6 
8349 Income tax related to components of 

other comprehensive income that 
will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss 

 6(25) 

(  40 )  -  (  1,188 )  - 
8310 Components of other 

comprehensive income that will 
not be reclassified to profit or loss 

  

(  41,735 ) ( 2 )  167,289   6 
 Components of other comprehensive 

income that will be reclassified to 
profit or loss 

  

           
8361 Financial statements translation 

differences of foreign operations 
  

(  9,003 )  -   26,669   1 
8399 Income tax relating to components 

of other comprehensive (losses) 
income that will be reclassified to 
profit or loss 

 6(25) 

 1,800   -  (  5,334 )  - 
8360 Components of other 

comprehensive (loss) income that 
will be reclassified to profit or loss 

  

(  7,203 )  -   21,335   1 
8300 Other comprehensive (loss) income, 

net 
  

($ 48,938 ) ( 2 ) $ 188,624   7 

8500 Total comprehensive income   $ 38,748   2  $ 303,328   11 

          
9750 Total basic earnings per share  6(26) $ 1.95  $ 2.55  

9850 Total diluted earnings per share  6(26) $ 1.94  $ 2.54   
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. 
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

 
     Capital Surplus  Retained Earnings  Other Equity Interest   

 

Notes 

 

Common stock 

 

Additional  

paid-in 
capital  

 

 Changes in 
ownership 
interests in 
subsidiaries 

 

Others 

 

Legal reserve 

 

Special reserve 

 

Unappropriated 
retained 
earnings 

 

Financial 
statements 
translation 

differences of 
foreign 

operations 

 Unrealised 
gains from 

financial assets 
measured at fair 
value through 

other 
comprehensive 

income 

 

Total equity 

 

  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements. 

 
 

2022                                         
Balance at January 1, 2022    $ 450,000    $ 720,878    $ -    $ -    $ 217,453    $ 52,110    $ 108,573   ( $ 61,427 )   $ -    $ 1,487,587  
  Profit for the year    -    -    -    -    -    -    114,704    -    -    114,704  
  Other comprehensive income for the year 6(2)(14)(2

5)   -    -    -    -    -    -    4,753    21,335    162,536    188,624  
Total comprehensive income    -    -    -    -    -    -    119,457    21,335    162,536    303,328  
Appropriation and distribution of 2021 earnings: 6(17)                                        
  Legal reserve appropriated    -    -    -    -    7,600    -   ( 7,600 )   -    -    -  
  Special reserve appropriated    -    -    -    -    -    9,317   ( 9,317 )   -    -    -  
  Cash dividends to shareholders    -    -    -    -    -    -   ( 47,250 )   -    -   ( 47,250 ) 
Cash dividends paid by additional paid-in capital 6(16)   -   ( 9,000 )   -    -    -    -    -    -    -   ( 9,000 ) 
Adjustment of ownership interests in subsidiaries    -    -    1,538    -    -    -    -    -    -    1,538  
Balance at December 31, 2022    $ 450,000    $ 711,878    $ 1,538    $ -    $ 225,053    $ 61,427    $ 163,863   ( $ 40,092 )   $ 162,536    $ 1,736,203  

2023                                         
Balance at January 1, 2023    $ 450,000    $ 711,878    $ 1,538    $ -    $ 225,053    $ 61,427    $ 163,863   ( $ 40,092 )   $ 162,536    $ 1,736,203  
  Profit for the year    -    -    -    -    -    -    87,686    -    -    87,686  
  Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year 6(2)(14)(2

5)   -    -    -    -    -    -    162   ( 7,203 )  ( 41,897 )  ( 48,938 ) 
Total comprehensive income (loss)    -    -    -    -    -    -    87,848   ( 7,203 )  ( 41,897 )   38,748  
Appropriation and distribution of 2022 earnings: 6(17)                                        
  Legal reserve appropriated    -    -    -    -    11,946    -   ( 11,946 )   -    -    -  
  Special reserve appropriated    -    -    -    -    -   ( 61,427 )   61,427    -    -    -  
  Cash dividends to shareholders    -    -    -    -    -    -   ( 90,000 )   -    -   ( 90,000 ) 
Adjustment of ownership interests in subsidiaries    -    -    241    -    -    -    -    -    -    241  
Application of disgorgement    -    -    -    22    -    -    -    -    -    22  
Balance at December 31, 2023    $ 450,000    $ 711,878    $ 1,779    $ 22    $ 236,999    $ -    $ 211,192   ( $ 47,295 )   $ 120,639    $ 1,685,214    
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. 
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

 
    Year ended December 31  

  Notes  2023    2022  

             

 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES            
Profit before tax    $ 105,086    $ 133,810  

Adjustments            
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)            

Depreciation expense (including depreciation 
charges on right-of-use assets) 

 6(7)(8)(23) 
  38,738     38,194  

Amortisation expense  6(23)   8,948     8,918  
Financial costs  6(22)   9,686     6,574  
Interest income  6(19) (  2,150 )  (  1,383 )
Dividend income  6(20) (  5,400 )  (  4,860 )
Share of loss of subsidiaries for using equity 
method 

  
(  45,013 )  (  21,632 )

Gain on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 

 6(7)(21) 
  -   (  216 )

Profit from lease modification  6(21) (  1 )    -  
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (gain)   (  34 )    90  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities            
Changes in operating assets            

Notes receivable, net     2,010     19,313  
Accounts receivable, net     148,865     151,233  
Accounts receivable due from related parties, 
net 

  
  65,034   (  89,860 )

Other receivables - related parties   (  13,989 )  (  8,244 )
Inventories, net     46,930   (  248,759 )
Prepayments     7,250   (  7,618 )

Changes in operating liabilities            
Current contract liabilities   (  65,557 )    97,514  
Notes payable   (  3,433 )  (  184 )
Accounts payable   (  46,636 )    114,671  
Accounts payable - related parties   (  112,315 )    60,243  
Other payables   (  397 )    256  
Provisions for liabilities - current     7,119     9,054  
Other current liabilities, others   (  5,772 )    1,500  
Defined benefit liability   (  1 )    3  

Cash inflow generated from operations     138,968     258,617  
Dividends received     5,400     4,860  
Interest received     2,147     1,383  
Interest paid   (  9,628 )  (  6,450 )
Income tax paid   (  20,106 )  (  14,597 )
Income tax refunded     -     2,293  

Net cash flows from operating activities     116,781     246,106  

 

(Continued)
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. 
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

 
    Year ended December 31  

  Notes  2023    2022  

             

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements. 
 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES            

Acquisition of financial assets at amortised cost   ($ 3,396 )  ($ 194 )

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at 
amortised cost 

  

  28     194  

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  6(7) (  28,513 )  (  11,213 )

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 

 6(7) 
  -     560  

Acquisition of intangible assets   (  2,150 )  (  2,529 )

Increase in prepayment of equipment   (  295 )  (  69,767 )

Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits     5,338   (  2,594 )

Increase in other non-current assets   (  7,921 )  (  4,125 )

Net cash flows used in investing activities   (  36,909 )  (  89,668 )

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES            

Increase in short-term borrowings  6(27)   3,710,305     3,226,334  

Decrease in short-term borrowings  6(27) (  3,625,305 )  (  3,377,115 )

Increase in short-term notes and bills payable  6(27)   751,116     350,328  

Decrease in short-term notes and bills payable  6(27) (  820,961 )  (  280,483 )

Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities  6(27) (  5,886 )  (  5,507 )

Cash dividends paid  6(16)(17) (  90,000 )  (  56,250 )

Application of disgorgement     22     -  

Net cash flows used in financing activities   (  80,709 )  (  142,693 )

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 
equivalents 

  

  34   (  90 )

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents   (  803 )    13,655  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year     122,736     109,081  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year    $ 121,933    $ 122,736    

24



 

 

 

 

ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND 
SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
For the convenience of readers and for information purpose only, the auditors’ report and the accompanying 
financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in 
the Republic of China. In the event of any discrepancy between the English version and the original Chinese 
version or any differences in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language auditors’ report and 
financial statements shall prevail. 

 

Attachment 4 :  

Consolidated Financial Statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE 

 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. 
 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ablerex Electronics 
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the 
related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of 
cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including a summary of material accounting policies. 
 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 
2023 and 2022, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows 
for the years then ended in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation 
of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” and the International Financial Reporting 
Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC 
Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory 
Commission. 
 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial 
Statement Audit and Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and 
Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance 
with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountants of the Republic of 
China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 
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Key audit matters for the Group’s consolidated financial statements of the current period 
are stated as follows: 
 

Appropriateness of cut-off of project construction revenue 

Description 

Please refer to Note 4(25) for accounting policy on revenue recognition, Note 6(18) for 
composition of operating revenue and Note 14(5) for information on products and services. 
For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group’s project construction revenue 
amounted to NT$1,124,639 thousand, accounting for 38% of consolidated net sales. 
 

The Group’s operating revenue is comprised of sales revenue and project construction 
revenue. The main composition of the project construction revenue is the sale of large 
equipment and installation related projects. The project needs to be completed through the 
Group’s installation of large-scale equipment, and after the relevant documents are 
executed by both parties and the client can obtain and consume the benefits provided by 
the asset, the Group will have deemed to have completed the contractual performance 
obligations and can recognize the project construction revenue. Due to the fact that the 
income of the Group’s project construction involves manual operation, it may result to 
inappropriate timing recognition of revenue. Considering that the amount of income 
recognized by the Group’s project construction in a timely manner has a significant impact 
on the consolidated financial statements, we have deemed the appropriateness of the 
project construction income as one of the significant audit matters for the year. 
How our audit addressed the matter 
We performed the following audit procedures in order to assess cut-off of project 
construction revenue: 
1. Assessed and obtained an understanding of the Group’s internal control procedures of 

the project construction revenue recognition, and confirmed the related internal 
controls were performed effectively. 

2. Performed cut-off test on project construction revenue transactions, and selected 
samples to check that the project construction revenue had been recorded in the proper 
period accordingly. 

3. Tested the accuracy and completeness of project construction list and traced to a related 
document that can prove revenue in order to confirm that the recognition amount and 
timing were appropriate. 
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Valuation of allowance for inventory valuation losses 

Description 

Please refer to Note 4(12) for accounting policy on inventory valuation, Note 5(2) for 
accounting estimates and assumption uncertainty in relation to inventory valuation, and 
Note 6(5) for the details of allowance for inventory valuation losses. As of December 31, 
2023, the Group’s inventories and allowance for inventory valuation losses amounted to 
NT $1,425,610 thousand and NT $172,728 thousand, respectively. 
 

The Group is engaged in the design, manufacture and sales of uninterruptible power 
supply systems, equipment to power quality devices and others. Due to the rapid 
technological innovations and the competitive nature of the market, there is a higher risk 
of inventory losses due to the market value decline or obsolescence. The Group recognises 
inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Obsolete or slow-moving 
inventories were assessed individually. The Group’s estimation and determination of the 
net realizable value of inventories are subjected to management’s judgement, involves a 
high level of uncertainty and has a material effect on the financial statements. Therefore, 
it was identified as a key audit matter. 
 

How our audit addressed the matter 
We performed the following audit procedures in order to assess the adequacy of the 
measurement of net realizable value and provision on allowance for inventory valuation 
losses: 
1. Assessed the reasonableness of policies relating to the provision of allowance for 

inventory valuation loses and procedures based on our understanding of the Group’s 
operation and industry. 

2. Verified the accuracy of the inventory aging report and net realizable value report in 
order to confirm that the information in the reports were consistent with the Group’s 
inventory policies. 

3. Checked the appropriateness of the estimation basis adopted by the Group for the 
evaluation of the net realizable value, verified the accuracy of inventory selling and 
purchase prices, and recalculated and evaluated the reasonableness of allowance for 
inventory valuation losses. 

4. Reviewed the appropriateness of the estimation basis for the evaluation of net realizable 
value, randomly checked supporting documents of product sales and purchases and 
recalculated and evaluated the reasonableness of allowance for inventory valuation 
losses. 
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Other matter – Parent company only financial statements 

We have audited and expressed an unqualified opinion on the parent company only 
financial statements of Ablerex Electronics Co., Ltd. as at and for the years ended 
December 31, 2023 and 2022. 
 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the 
consolidated financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of 
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” and the International Financial Reporting 
Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC 
Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory 
Commission, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  

 

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for 
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, 
we exercise professional judgement and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also: 
1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 

 

Lin, Se-Kai  Lai, Chung-Hsi 

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan 

March 13, 2024 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and 
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the 
Republic of China governing the audit of such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted 
in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. Accordingly, the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements and independent auditors’ report are not intended for use by those who 
are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic 
of China, and their applications in practice. 
As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot 
accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or 
misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.  
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

 
      December 31, 2023   December 31, 2022  

 ASSETS  Notes  AMOUNT   %   AMOUNT   %  

 Current assets                 

1100 Cash and cash equivalents  6(1)  $ 301,276   9   $ 259,173   7  

1136 Current financial assets at amortised 

cost 

 6(3) and 8 

  47,255   1    13,418   1  

1150 Notes receivable, net  6(4)   14,778   -    6,307   -  

1170 Accounts receivable, net  6(4)   573,098   17    707,384   19  

1180 Accounts receivable due from related 

parties, net 

 6(4) and 7 

  2,328   -    7,709   -  

1200 Other receivables     15,852   1    11,049   -  

1220 Current tax assets     3,052   -    2,119   -  

130X Inventories, net  6(5)   1,252,882   38    1,490,274   40  

1410 Prepayments     25,120   1    42,788   1  

11XX Total current assets     2,235,641   67    2,540,221   68  

 Non-current assets                 

1517 Non-current financial assets at fair 

value through other comprehensive 

income 

 6(2) 

  201,639   6    243,536   7  

1600 Property, plant and equipment  6(6) and 8   778,635   23    726,935   20  

1755 Right-of-use assets  6(7) and 8   7,048   -    13,780   -  

1780 Intangible assets     46,100   1    45,970   1  

1840 Deferred income tax assets     47,598   2    42,642   1  

1900 Other non-current assets  6(8)   27,981   1    101,432   3  

15XX Total non-current assets     1,109,001   33    1,174,295   32  

1XXX Total assets    $ 3,344,642   100   $ 3,714,516   100  
 

(Continued)
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
 

 

     December 31, 2023   December 31, 2022  
 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  Notes  AMOUNT   %   AMOUNT   %  

 Current liabilities                 

2100 Short-term borrowings  6(9)  $ 550,000   16   $ 616,473   17  
2110 Short-term notes and bills payable  6(10)   -   -    69,845   2  
2130 Current contract liabilities  6(18)   216,523   7    284,449   8  

2150 Notes payable     256   -    3,689   -  
2170 Accounts payable     487,525   15    591,145   16  
2200 Other payables  6(12)   151,999   5    151,021   4  

2230 Current income tax liabilities     8,988   -    17,008   -  
2250 Provisions for liabilities - current  6(13)   73,082   2    65,963   2  
2280 Current lease liabilities  7   5,821   -    9,237   -  

2320 Long-term liabilities, current portion  6(11)   10,916   -    10,075   -  
2399 Other current liabilities, others     14,803   -    18,916   1  

21XX Total current liabilities     1,519,913   45    1,837,821   50  

 Non-current liabilities                 
2540 Long-term borrowings  6(11)   10,268   -    19,460   1  
2570 Deferred income tax liabilities     102,495   3    92,975   2  

2580 Non-current lease liabilities  7   624   -    4,032   -  
2640 Net defined benefit liability, non-

current 
 6(14) 

  11,628   1    11,831   -  

25XX Total non-current liabilities     125,015   4    128,298   3  

2XXX Total liabilities     1,644,928   49    1,966,119   53  

 Equity attributable to owners of 
parent 

  

              
 Share capital  6(15)               

3110 Common stock     450,000   13    450,000   12  
 Capital surplus  6(16)               
3200 Capital surplus     713,679   21    713,416   19  

 Retained earnings  6(17)               
3310 Legal reserve     236,999   7    225,053   6  
3320 Special reserve     -   -    61,427   2  

3350 Unappropriated retained earnings     211,192   6    163,863   5  
 Other equity interest                 
3400 Other equity interest     73,344   3    122,444   3  

31XX Total equity attributable to 
owners of parent 

  

  1,685,214   50    1,736,203   47  

36XX Non-controlling interests     14,500   1    12,194   -  

3XXX Total equity     1,699,714   51    1,748,397   47  

 Significant commitments and contingent 
liabilities 

 7 and 9 

              
 Singificant events after the balance 

sheet date 
 11 

              

3X2X Total liabilities and equity    $ 3,344,642   100   $ 3,714,516   100   
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except earnings per share amount) 

 
      Year ended December 31  

     2023   2022  

Items  Notes  AMOUNT   %   AMOUNT   %  

4000 Sales revenue  6(18) and 7 $ 2,925,183   100  $ 3,057,767   100 

5000 Operating costs  6(5)(23)(24) (  2,177,745 ) ( 74 ) (  2,333,891 ) ( 76) 

5950 Gross profit from operations    747,438   26   723,876   24 

 Operating expenses  6(23)(24)            

6100 Selling expenses   (  340,820 ) ( 12 ) (  316,704 ) ( 10) 

6200 General and administrative 

expenses 

  

(  120,392 ) ( 4 ) (  118,834 ) ( 4) 

6300 Research and development 

expenses 

  

(  170,979 ) ( 6 ) (  165,063 ) ( 6) 

6450 Expected credit loss   (  4,531 )  -  (  2,120 )  - 

6000 Total operating expenses   (  636,722 ) ( 22 ) (  602,721 ) ( 20) 

6900 Net operating income    110,716   4   121,155   4 

 Non-operating income and 

expenses 

  

           

7100 Interest income  6(3)(19)  3,453   -   905   - 

7010 Other income  6(20)  10,842   -   14,436   - 

7020 Other gains and losses  6(21)  5,271   -   17,024   1 

7050 Finance costs  6(22) and 7 (  13,656 )  -  (  12,162 )  - 

7000 Total non-operating income 

and expenses 

  

 5,910   -   20,203   1 

7900 Profit before income tax    116,626   4   141,358   5 

7950 Income tax expense  6(25) (  26,035 ) ( 1 ) (  27,534 ) ( 1) 

8200 Profit for the year   $ 90,591   3  $ 113,824   4 

 
(Continued)
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except earnings per share amount) 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
 

     Year ended December 31  

     2023   2022  

Items  Notes  AMOUNT   %   AMOUNT   %  

 Other comprehensive income              
 Components of other 

comprehensive income (loss) that 
will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss 

  

           
8311 Gains on remeasurements of 

defined benefit plans 
 6(14) 

$ 202   -  $ 5,941   - 
8316 Unrealised gains (losses) from 

investments in equity 
instruments measured at fair 
value through other 
comprehensive income 

 6(2) 

(  41,897 ) ( 2 )  162,536   5 
8349 Income tax related to 

components of other 
comprehensive income that will 
not be reclassified to profit or 
loss 

 6(25) 

(  40 )  -  (  1,188 )  - 
8310 Components of other 

comprehensive income that 
will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss 

  

(  41,735 ) ( 2 )  167,289   5 
 Components of other 

comprehensive income that will 
be reclassified to profit or loss 

  

           
8361 Financial statements translation 

differences of foreign operations 
  

(  9,252 )  -   25,866   1 
8399 Income tax relating to 

components of other 
comprehensive (losses) income 
that will be reclassified to profit 
or loss 

 6(25) 

 1,800   -  (  5,334 )  - 
8360 Components of other 

comprehensive (loss) income 
that will be reclassified to 
profit or loss 

  

(  7,452 )  -   20,532   1 
8300 Other comprehensive (loss) 

income, net 
  

($ 49,187 ) ( 2 ) $ 187,821   6 

8500 Total comprehensive income   $ 41,404   1  $ 301,645   10 

 Profit (loss) attributable to:              
8610 Owners of the parent   $ 87,686   3  $ 114,704   4 
8620 Non-controlling interest    2,905   -  (  880 )  - 
    $ 90,591   3  $ 113,824   4 

 Comprehensive income (loss) 
attributable to: 

  
           

8710 Owners of the parent   $ 38,748   1  $ 303,328   10 
8720 Non-controlling interest    2,656   -  (  1,683 )  - 
    $ 41,404   1  $ 301,645   10 

          
 Earnings per share (in dollars)         
9750 Basic earnings per share  6(26) $ 1.95  $ 2.55  

9850 Diluted earnings per share  6(26) $ 1.94  $ 2.54   
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 
 

   Equity attributable to owners of the parent     

     Capital Surplus  Retained Earnings  Other Equity Interest       

 

Notes 

 

Common stock 

 

Additional paid-in 

capital 

 

Changes in 
ownership 
interests in 
subsidiaries 

 

Others 

 

Legal reserve 

 

Special reserve 

 

Unappropriated 
retained earnings 

 

Total exchange 
differences on 
translation of 

foreign financial 
statements 

 Unrealised gains 
(losses) from 

financial assets 
measured at fair 
value through 

other 
comprehensive 

income 

 

Total 

 

Non-controlling 
interests 

 

Total equity 

 

  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

 

2022                                             

Balance at January 1, 2022    $ 450,000    $ 720,878    $ -    $ -    $ 217,453    $ 52,110    $ 108,573   ( $ 61,427)   $ -    $ 1,487,587    $ 13,877    $ 1,501,464  

  Profit (loss) for the year    -    -    -    -    -    -    114,704    -    -    114,704   ( 880)   113,824  

  Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year 6(2)(14)(25)   -    -    -    -    -    -    4,753    21,335    162,536    188,624   ( 803)   187,821  

Total comprehensive income (loss)    -    -    -    -    -    -    119,457    21,335    162,536    303,328   ( 1,683)   301,645  

Appropriation and distribution of 2021 earnings: 6(17)                                            

  Legal reserve appropriated    -    -    -    -    7,600    -   ( 7,600 )   -    -    -    -    -  

  Special reserve appropriated    -    -    -    -    -    9,317   ( 9,317 )   -    -    -    -    -  

  Cash dividends to shareholders    -    -    -    -    -    -   ( 47,250 )   -    -   ( 47,250)   -   ( 47,250 ) 

Cash dividends paid by additional paid-in capital 6(16)   -   ( 9,000 )   -    -    -    -    -    -    -   ( 9,000)   -   ( 9,000 ) 

Adjustment of ownership interests in subsidiaries    -    -    1,538    -    -    -    -    -    -    1,538    -    1,538  

Balance at December 31, 2022    $ 450,000    $ 711,878    $ 1,538    $ -    $ 225,053    $ 61,427    $ 163,863   ( $ 40,092)   $ 162,536    $ 1,736,203    $ 12,194    $ 1,748,397  

2023                                             

Balance at January 1, 2023    $ 450,000    $ 711,878    $ 1,538    $ -    $ 225,053    $ 61,427    $ 163,863   ( $ 40,092)   $ 162,536    $ 1,736,203    $ 12,194    $ 1,748,397  

  Profit for the year    -    -    -    -    -    -    87,686    -    -    87,686    2,905    90,591  

  Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year 6(2)(14)(25)   -    -    -    -    -    -    162   ( 7,203)  ( 41,897 )  ( 48,938)  ( 249)  ( 49,187 ) 

Total comprehensive income (loss)    -    -    -    -    -    -    87,848   ( 7,203)  ( 41,897 )   38,748    2,656    41,404  

Appropriation and distribution of 2022 earnings: 6(17)                                            
  Legal reserve appropriated    -    -    -    -    11,946    -   ( 11,946 )   -    -    -    -    -  

  Special reserve reserved    -    -    -    -    -   ( 61,427)   61,427    -    -    -    -    -  

  Cash dividends to shareholders    -    -    -    -    -    -   ( 90,000 )   -    -   ( 90,000)   -   ( 90,000 ) 

Changes in non-controlling interests 6(27)   -    -    241    -    -    -    -    -    -    241   ( 350)  ( 109 ) 

Application of disgorgement    -    -    -    22    -    -    -    -    -    22    -    22  

Balance at December 31, 2023    $ 450,000    $ 711,878    $ 1,779    $ 22    $ 236,999    $ -    $ 211,192   ( $ 47,295)   $ 120,639    $ 1,685,214    $ 14,500    $ 1,699,714    
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

 
    Year ended December 31  

  Notes  2023    2022  

             
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES            

Profit before tax    $ 116,626    $ 141,358  

Adjustments            

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)            

Depreciation expense (including depreciation 
charges on right-of-use assets) 

 6(6)(7)(23) 
  62,472     62,261  

Amortisation expense  6(23)   9,991     9,813  

Expected credit loss     4,531     2,120  

Financial costs  6(22)   13,656     12,162  

Interest income  6(19) (  3,453 )  (  905 )

Dividend income  6(20) (  5,400 )  (  4,860 )

Loss on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 

 6(6)(21) 
  1,984     85  

Profit from lease modification  6(21) (  1 )    -  

Unrealised foreign exchange loss (gain)   (  34 )    90  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities            

Changes in operating assets            

Notes receivable, net   (  8,471 )    18,530  

Accounts receivable     129,731     119,099  

Accounts receivable due from related parties, 
net 

  

  5,381     12,749  

Other receivables   (  3,980 )  (  3,040 )

Inventories, net     237,392   (  291,367 )

Prepayments     17,668   (  2,386 )

Changes in operating liabilities            

Current contract liabilities   (  67,926 )    96,742  

Notes payable   (  3,433 )  (  184 )

Accounts payable   (  103,620 )    40,589  

Other payables     1,864   (  641 )

Provisions for liabilities - current     7,119     9,054  

Other current liabilities, others   (  4,113 )    3,079  

Defined benefit liability   (  1 )    3  

Cash inflow generated from operations     407,983     224,351  

Interest received     2,630     903  

Dividends received     5,400     4,860  

Interest paid   (  14,541 )  (  11,674 )

Income tax paid   (  28,417 )  (  27,490 )

Income tax refunded     5     4,164  

Net cash flows from operating activities     373,060     195,114  

 

(Continued)
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ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars) 

 
    Year ended December 31  

  Notes  2023    2022  

             

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES            

Acquisition of financial assets at amortised cost   ($ 56,302 )  ($ 13,418 )

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at 
amortised cost 

  

  22,224     13,226  

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  6(6) (  39,738 )  (  20,725 )

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 

 6(6) 
  354     560  

Acquisition of intangible assets   (  2,150 )  (  2,529 )

Increase in prepayment of equipment   (  295 )  (  69,767 )

Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits     4,858   (  2,518 )

Increase in other non-current assets   (  8,509 )  (  5,461 )

Net cash flows used in investing activities   (  79,558 )  (  100,632 )

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES            

Increase in short-term borrowings  6(28)   4,004,799     3,960,707  

Decrease in short-term borrowings  6(28) (  4,071,389 )  (  4,102,879 )

Increase in short-term notes and bills payable  6(28)   751,116     350,328  

Decrease in short-term notes and bills payable  6(28) (  820,961 )  (  280,483 )

Proceeds from long-term debt  6(28)   -     18,816  

Repayments of long-term debt  6(28) (  9,409 )  (  12,148 )

Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities  6(28) (  10,496 )  (  10,097 )

Cash dividends paid  6(16)(17) (  90,000 )  (  56,250 )

Decrease in non-controlling interests  6(27) (  109 )    -  

Application of disgorgement     22     -  

Net cash flows used in financing activities   (  246,427 )  (  132,006 )

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 
equivalents 

  

(  4,972 )    27,749  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents     42,103   (  9,775 )

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year     259,173     268,948  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year    $ 301,276    $ 259,173    
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Attachment 5: Profit 
Distribution Table of  2023 

 
Ablerex Electronics Co., Ltd. 

Profit Distribution Table of 2023 
(Unit: NTD$) 

Items Amount Description 
2023 Net income 87,685,999   
Add/Less: 2023 Retain earnings 
adjustments 

161,882 Old-version pension actuarial difference 
 

2023 Net profit subtotal 87,847,881  
Less: provision of  legal reserve (10%) -8,784,788   
Add: 2022 undistributed profit 123,344,266   

2023 Distributable profit 202,407,359   

Less: cash dividend to shareholders 90,000,000 NTD 2.00 cash dividend per share 

Undistributed earnings 112,407,359  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Chairman: Steven Hsu   Manager: M.Z. Hwang   Accounting: Emma Liao 
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Rules and Procedures of Shareholders' Meeting 

Amendment reference table (CA-016 V9 20240625) 
Amended Original Description 

Article 3 
1. (Omitted) 
1.1 Changes to how this Corporation 
convenes its shareholders meeting shall 
be resolved by the board of  directors 
and shall be made no later than mailing 
of  the shareholders meeting notice. 
1.2 When a company organizes a video 
meeting of  shareholders, it is imperative, 
unless expressly addressed in the stock 
affairs management standards of  a 
publicly listed company, that such 
meetings are explicitly outlined in the 
Articles of  Incorporation. Furthermore, 
the conduct of  video meetings requires 
prior approval by the board of  directors, 
with a prerequisite attendance of  more 
than two-thirds of  the directors. The 
resolution passed during the video 
meeting must secure approval from over 
half  of  the directors to be implemented. 
 
(Omitted) 

Article 3 
1. (Omitted) 
1.1 Changes to how this Corporation 
convenes its shareholders meeting shall 
be resolved by the board of  directors 
and shall be made no later than mailing 
of  the shareholders meeting notice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Omitted) 

Items 1.2 is 
added.  
 
 

Article 6-1 
(Omitted) 
3. A video shareholders' meeting shall be 
convened and shall specify the 
appropriate alternative measures 
provided to shareholders who may have 
difficulties participating in the 
shareholders by video. Except for the 
situations outlined in Paragraph 6 of  
Article 44-9 in the Standards for 
Regulations Governing the 
Administration of  Shareholder Services 
of  Public Companies, shareholders must 
be furnished with the requisite 
connection equipment and necessary 
support. The company is also obliged to 
specify the timeframe during which 
shareholders can submit their 
applications and provide details on other 
relevant matters pertaining to the 
process. 
 

Article 6-1 
(Omitted) 
3. A video shareholders' meeting shall be 
convened and shall specify the 
appropriate alternative measures 
provided to shareholders who may have 
difficulties participating in the 
shareholders by video. 

Legal updates 

Article 22 
When the Company convenes a video 
shareholders' meeting, it shall provide 
appropriate alternative measures to 
shareholders who will have difficulties in 
attending the shareholders by video. 
Except for the situations outlined in 
Paragraph 6 of Article 44-9 in the 
Standards for Regulations Governing the 

Article 22 
When the Company convenes a video 
shareholders' meeting, it shall provide 
appropriate alternative measures to 
shareholders who will have difficulties in 
attending the shareholders by video. 

Legal updates 

Attachment 6: Rules and Procedures 
of Shareholders' Meeting 
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Amended Original Description 
Administration of  Shareholder Services 
of  Public Companies, shareholders must 
be furnished with the requisite 
connection equipment and necessary 
support. The company is also obliged to 
specify the timeframe during which 
shareholders can submit their 
applications and provide details on other 
relevant matters pertaining to the 
process. 
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Articles of Incorporation 
Amendments reference table (V.19 20240625) 

Amended Original Description 
Article 2 
The scope of business of the Corporation shall be 
as follows: 
(omitted~) 
29. JE01010  Rental and Leasing。 
30. E606010  Power Consuming Equipment 

Inspecting and Maintenance 
31.ZZ99999  All business items that are not 

prohibited or restricted by law, except those 
that are subject to special approval. 

32. E602011  Refrigeration and Air Conditioning 
Engineering 

Article 2 
The scope of business of the Corporation shall be 
as follows: 
(omitted~) 
29. JE01010  Rental and Leasing。 
30. E606010  Power Consuming Equipment 

Inspecting and Maintenance 
31.ZZ99999  All business items that are not 

prohibited or restricted by law, except those 
that are subject to special approval. 

New added 
business items 

Article 28 
… 
the fifteenth Amendment of Jun 18, 2019 
the sixteenth Amendment of Aug 18, 2021 
the seventeenth Amendment of Jun 23, 2022 
the eighteenth Amendment of June 27, 2023 
the nineteenth Amendment of June 25, 2024 

Article 28 
… 
the fifteenth Amendment of Jun 18, 2019 
the sixteenth Amendment of Aug 18, 2021 
the seventeenth Amendment of Jun 23, 2022 
the eighteenth Amendment of June 27, 2023 

Noted the date 
of  amendment 

 

Attachment 7: Articles of 
Incorporation 
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附件 1 :  
 

Shareholding of  Directors 

1. Paid-in Capital and Total Issued Shares: 
o The paid-in capital of the company stands at NTD$450,000,000. 
o The total number of issued shares is 45,000,000. 

2. Director Shareholding Requirements: 
o According to Article 26 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the directors of the 

Company must hold a minimum of 3,600,000 shares of nominal stocks. 
3. Actual Director Shareholdings: 

o As of the share register closed date (April 26, 2024) for the shareholders’ meeting:  
 The total nominal stocks held by the directors amount to 25,681,363 shares. 
 This represents 57.07% of the total issued shares. 

o The individual shareholdings (shares) of directors are as follows: 

Shareholding of Directors 

 

Position Name Current Shareholding 
(Shares) 

Shareholding 
ratio (%) 

Chairman Steven Hsu 9,638,177 21.42% 
Director Y.A. Chen 2,485,763 5.52% 

Director UIS Co. Legal person director 
L.Y. Pan 13,356,502 29.68% 

Director S.G. Wang 0 0.00% 
Director Tim Sung 200,921 0.45% 
Director James Ho 0 0.00% 
Independent 
Director Y.J. Ding 0 0.00% 

Independent 
Director Y.L. Su 0 0.00% 

Independent 
Director J.C. Hsieh 0 0.00% 

 
 

Appendix 1 :  

Shareholding of Directors 
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附件 1 :  

 
 

 
Impact of  stock dividend issuance on the Company’s business performance and 
earnings per share : 
 
The surplus distribution proposal to be submitted to the general meeting of  shareholders 
will only allocate cash dividends, without arbitrage and free allotment. In accordance with 
the "Regulations Governing the Publication of  Financial Forecasts of  Public companies" , 
the company does not need to disclose the 2024 financial Forecast information, so the 
relevant information on the impact of  changes in business performance, earnings per 
share and shareholder return on investment is not applicable for it. 
 
 

Appendix 2 :  
Impact of stock dividend issuance on the 
Company’s business performance and earnings 
per share 
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Rules and Procedures of 
Shareholders' Meeting 

Doc. No. CA-016 
Date 2022/6/23 

Version 8 

Article 1 

To establish a strong governance system and sound supervisory capabilities for this Corporation's 
shareholders meetings, and to strengthen management capabilities, these Rules are adopted 
pursuant to Article 5 of the Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx 
Listed Companies. 

 

Article 2 

The rules of procedures for this Corporation's shareholders meetings, except as otherwise provided 
by law, regulation, or the articles of incorporation, shall be as provided in these Rules. 

 

Article 3 

1. Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation, this Corporation's shareholders meetings shall be 
convened by the board of directors. 

1-1. Changes the way to convene the shareholders’ meeting shall be resolved by the Board of 
Directors and shall be made no later than sending the notice of the meeting. 

2. This Corporation shall prepare electronic versions of the shareholders meeting notice and proxy 
forms, and the origins of and explanatory materials relating to all proposals, including proposals 
for ratification, matters for deliberation, or the election or dismissal of directors, and upload 
them to the Market Observation Post System (MOPS) before 30 days before the date of a 
regular shareholders meeting or before 15 days before the date of a special shareholders 
meeting.  

3. This Corporation shall prepare electronic versions of the shareholders’ meeting agenda and 
supplemental meeting materials and upload them to the MOPS before 21 days before the date 
of the regular shareholders’ meeting or before 15 days before the date of the special 
shareholders’ meeting. However, if the Company's paid-up capital at the end of the most recent 
fiscal year reaches NT$10 billion or more, or more than 30% of the total foreign and Chinese 
shareholding ratios recorded in its shareholders' book at the ordinary shareholders’ meeting in 
the most recent fiscal year, the transmission of electronic files shall be 30 days prior to the 
ordinary shareholders’ meeting. In addition, before 15 days before the date of the shareholders’ 
meeting, this Corporation shall also have prepared the shareholders’ meeting agenda and 
supplemental meeting materials and made them available for review by shareholders at any time. 

Appendix 3 :  
Rules and Procedure of  
Shareholders’ Meeting 
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The meeting agenda and supplemental materials shall also be displayed at this Corporation and 
the professional shareholder services agent designated place. 

3-1. The Handbook and Supplementary Information for the Meeting referred to in the preceding 
paragraph shall be provided to shareholders for reference on the day of the shareholders’ meeting 
in following ways:  

(1). When the entity shareholders’ meeting is convened, it shall be issued at the shareholders’ 
meeting. 

(2). When a video-assisted shareholders’ meeting is held, it shall be distributed on the place of the 
shareholders’ meeting and transmitted to the video conference platform by electronic files.  

(3). When a video shareholders’ meeting is held, the electronic file shall be transmitted to the 
video conference platform. 

4. The reasons for convening a shareholders’ meeting shall be specified in the meeting notice and 
public announcement. With the consent of the addressee, the meeting notice may be given in 
electronic form. 

 

5. Election or dismissal of directors, amendments to the articles of incorporation, Capital reduction, 
application for suspension of public offering, directors' competition permission, surplus capital 
increase, capital accumulation capital increase, the dissolution, merger, or demerger of the 
corporation, or any matter under Article 185, paragraph 1 of the Company Act, Articles 26-1 
and 43-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act, or Articles 56-1 and 60-2 of the Regulations 
Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers,  the main content 
shall be enumerated and explained in the convening matter, and shall not be raised by an 
extraordinary motion. 

5-1. The general shareholders meeting has stated the full re-election of  the directors and the date of  
appointment. After the re-election of  the shareholders meeting is being completed, the meeting 
may not change its appointment date by extraordinary motion or other ways. 

6. A shareholder holding 1 percent or more of the total number of issued shares may submit to this 
Corporation a written proposal for discussion at a regular shareholders meeting. Such proposals, 
however, are limited to one item only, and no proposal containing more than one item will be 
included in the meeting agenda. However, the shareholders' proposal is a proposal to urge the 
company to promote the public interest or fulfill its social responsibility, and the board of 
directors still has to include it in the proposal. In addition, when the circumstances of any 
subparagraph of Article 172-1, paragraph 4 of the Company Act apply to a proposal put 
forward by a shareholder, the board of directors may exclude it from the agenda.  

Shareholders may submit proposed proposals to urge the company to promote the public interest 
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or fulfill its social responsibilities. The procedures shall be limited to one item in accordance with 
the relevant provisions of  Article 172-1 of  the Company Law. Any proposal with more than one 
item may be excluded in the proposal. 

7. Prior to the book closure date before a regular shareholders meeting is held, this Corporation 
shall publicly announce that it will receive shareholder proposals by written or electronic, and 
the location and time period for their submission; the period for submission of shareholder 
proposals may not be less than 10 days. 

8. Shareholder-submitted proposals are limited to 300 words, and no proposal containing more than 
300 words will be included in the meeting agenda. The shareholder making the proposal shall be 
present in person or by proxy at the regular shareholders meeting and take part in discussion of 
the proposal. 

9. Prior to the date for issuance of notice of a shareholders meeting, this Corporation shall inform 
the shareholders who submitted proposals of the proposal screening results, and shall list in the 
meeting notice the proposals that conform to the provisions of this article. At the shareholders 
meeting the board of directors shall explain the reasons for exclusion of any shareholder 
proposals not included in the agenda. 

 

Article 4 

1. For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting by 
providing the proxy form issued by this Corporation and stating the scope of the proxy's 
authorization.  

2. shareholder may issue only one proxy form and appoint only one proxy for any given 
shareholders meeting, and shall deliver the proxy form to this Corporation before 5 days before 
the date of the shareholders meeting. When duplicate proxy forms are delivered, the one 
received earliest shall prevail unless a declaration is made to cancel the previous proxy 
appointment. 

3. After a proxy form has been delivered to this Corporation, if the shareholder intends to attend 
the meeting in person or to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronically, a written 
notice of proxy cancellation shall be submitted to this Corporation before 2 business days 
before the meeting date. If the cancellation notice is submitted after that time, votes cast at the 
meeting by the proxy shall prevail. 

4. After the power of attorney is delivered to the Company, if the shareholder wishes to attend the 
shareholders’ meeting by video conference, he shall notify the Company in writing to revoke the 
proxy two days before the meeting of the shareholders’ meeting. In the event of revocation 
within the dead line, the voting rights of the proxy representative shall be present and exercised. 
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Article 5 

1. The venue for a shareholders meeting shall be the premises of this Corporation, or a place easily 
accessible to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders meeting. The meeting may begin no 
earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full consideration shall be given to the opinions of 
the independent directors with respect to the place and time of the meeting. 

2. When the Company convenes a video shareholders' meeting, it shall not be restricted by the place 
of the meeting mentioned in the preceding paragraph. 

 

Article 6 

1. This Corporation shall specify in its Shareholders, Solicitors, Trustees (hereinafter referred to as 
Shareholders) meeting notices the time during which shareholder attendance registrations will 
be accepted, the place to register for attendance, and other matters for attention. 

2. The time during which shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted, as stated in the 
preceding paragraph, shall be at least 30 minutes prior to the time the meeting commences. The 
place at which attendance registrations are accepted shall be clearly marked and a sufficient 
number of suitable personnel assigned to handle the registrations. The shareholders shall be 
accepted and registered on the video platform of the shareholders' meeting 30 minutes before 
the meeting, and the shareholders who complete the registration shall be deemed to have 
attended the shareholders' meeting in person. 

3. Shareholders shall attend shareholders’ meetings based on attendance cards, sign-in cards, or 
other certificates of attendance. This Corporation may not arbitrarily add requirements for other 
documents beyond those showing eligibility to attend presented by shareholders. Solicitors 
soliciting proxy forms shall also bring identification documents for verification. 

4. This Corporation shall furnish the attending shareholders with an attendance book to sign, or 
attending shareholders may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in. 

5. This Corporation shall furnish attending shareholders with the meeting agenda book, annual 
report, attendance card, speaker's slips, voting slips, and other meeting materials. Where there is 
an election of directors, pre-printed ballots shall also be furnished. 

6. When the government or a juristic person is a shareholder, it may be represented by more than 
one representative at a shareholders meeting. When a juristic person is appointed to attend as 
proxy, it may designate only one person to represent it in the meeting. 

7. If the shareholders' meeting is convened by video, and the shareholders wish to attend by video, 
they shall register with the Company two days before the meeting. 
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8. To convene the video shareholders' meeting, the Company shall upload the handbook of meeting, 
annual report and other relevant information to the video platform of the shareholders' meeting 
at least 30 minutes before the meeting, and continue to disclose it until the end of the meeting. 

 

Article 6-1 

The Company shall convene a video Shareholders’ Meeting and shall specify the following matters in 
the Notice of the Shareholders’ Meeting:  

1. Methods for shareholders to participate in video meetings and exercise their rights.  

2. The handling of blockages arising from the video conference platform or the participation of video 
parties due to natural disasters, incidents or other force majeure circumstances includes at least the 
following matters:  

(1) The continuous preceding blockage has not been solved so as to postpone or to continue the 
meeting, and the date to postpone or to continue the meeting if necessary.  

(2) Shareholders who have not registered to participate in the original shareholders' meeting by 
video shall not participate in the postponing or continuing of the meeting.  

(3) If the video-assisted shareholders' meeting cannot be continued, after deducting the number of 
shares participating in the shareholders' meeting by video, and the total number of shares 
present at the shareholders' meeting reaches the statutory quota of the shareholders' meeting, 
the shareholders' meeting shall continue, and the shareholders participating in the shareholders 
by video shall be included in the total number of shareholders' shares present, and all the 
proposals of the shareholders' meeting shall be regarded as abstention.  

(4) In the event that the results of all motions have been announced, but no provisional motions 
have been made, the manner of handling them shall be handled.  

3. A video shareholders' meeting shall be convened and shall specify the appropriate alternative 
measures provided to shareholders who may have difficulties participating in the shareholders 
by video. 

 

Article 7 

1. If a shareholders meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting shall be chaired by 
the chairperson of the board. When the chairperson of the board is on leave or for any reason 
unable to exercise the powers of the chairperson, the vice chairperson shall act in place of the 
chairperson; if there is no vice chairperson or the vice chairperson also is on leave or for any 
reason unable to exercise the powers of the vice chairperson, the chairperson shall appoint one 
of the managing directors to act as chair, or, if there are no managing directors, one of the 
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directors shall be appointed to act as chair. Where the chairperson does not make such a 
designation, the managing directors or the directors shall select from among themselves one 
person to serve as chair. 

2. When a managing director or a director serves as chair, as referred to in the preceding paragraph, 
the managing director or director shall be one who has held that position for six months or 
more and who understands the financial and business conditions of the company. The same 
shall be true for a representative of a juristic person director that serves as chair. 

3. It is advisable that shareholders meetings convened by the board of directors be chaired by the 
chairperson of the board in person and attended by a majority of the directors, at least one 
independent director in person, and at least one member of each functional committee on 
behalf of the committee. The attendance shall be recorded in the meeting minutes. 

4. If a shareholders meeting is convened by a party with power to convene but other than the board 
of directors, the convening party shall chair the meeting. When there are two or more such 
convening parties, they shall mutually select a chair from among themselves. 

5. This Corporation may appoint its attorneys, certified public accountants, or related persons 
retained by it to attend a shareholders meeting in a non-voting capacity. 

 

Article 8 

1. This Corporation, beginning from the time it accepts shareholder attendance registrations, shall 
make an uninterrupted audio and video recording of the registration procedure, the proceedings 
of the shareholders meeting, and the voting and vote counting procedures. 

2. The recorded materials of the preceding paragraph shall be retained for at least 1 year. If, 
however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the 
recording shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation. 

3. If the shareholders' meeting is convened by video meeting, the company shall keep records of the 
shareholders' registration, check in, ask question, voting and vote counting, and record the whole 
process of the video conference continuously and uninterruptedly.  

4. The Company shall properly keep the materials and audio and video recordings mentioned in the 
preceding paragraph during the period of existence, and provide the audio and video recordings 
to the person entrusted with the video conference service for preservation.  

5. If the shareholders' meeting is convened by video conference, the Company should make audio 
and video recordings of the back-end operation interface of the video conference platform. 
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Article 9 

1. Attendance at shareholders’ meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of shares. The 
number of shares in attendance shall be calculated according to the shares indicated by the 
attendance book and sign-in cards handed in and the number of shares registered on the video 
conferencing platform plus the number of shares whose voting rights are exercised by 
correspondence or electronically. 

2. The chair shall call the meeting to order at the appointed meeting time. Relevant information 
such as the number of non-voting rights and the number of shares present will be announced at 
the same time. However, when the attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the 
total number of issued shares, the chair may announce a postponement, provided that no more 
than two such postponements, for a combined total of no more than 1 hour, may be made. If 
the quorum is not met after two postponements and the attending shareholders still represent 
less than one third of the total number of issued shares, the chair shall declare the meeting 
adjourned. 

3. However, when the attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number of 
issued shares, the chair may announce a postponement, provided that no more than two such 
postponements, for a combined total of no more than 1 hour, may be made. If the quorum is 
not met after two postponements and the attending shareholders still represent less than one 
third of the total number of issued shares, the chair shall declare the meeting adjourned. If the 
shareholders' meeting is convened by video meeting, the Company shall also announce to 
adjourn the meeting on the video platform of the shareholders' meeting. 

4. If the quorum is not met after two postponements as referred to in the preceding paragraph, but 
the attending shareholders represent one third or more of the total number of issued shares, a 
tentative resolution may be adopted pursuant to Article 175, paragraph 1 of the Company Act; all 
shareholders shall be notified of the tentative resolution and another shareholders’ meeting shall 
be convened within 1 month. If the shareholders' meeting is convened by video meeting, and the 
shareholders wish to participate in the meeting by video, they shall re-register with the Company 
in accordance with Article 6. 

5. When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a majority of the 
total number of issued shares, the chair may resubmit the tentative resolution for a vote by the 
shareholders meeting pursuant to Article 174 of the Company Act. 

 

Article 10 

1. If a shareholders meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting agenda shall be set 
by the board of directors. Relevant matters (including extempore motions and amendments to 
the original motions) shall be decided on a case-by-case basis. The meeting shall proceed in the 
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order set by the agenda, which may not be changed without a resolution of the shareholders 
meeting. 

2. The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders meeting 
convened by a party with the power to convene that is not the board of directors. 

3. The chair may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of deliberation on the 
meeting agenda of the preceding two paragraphs (including extraordinary motions), except by a 
resolution of the shareholders meeting. If the chair declares the meeting adjourned in violation 
of the rules of procedure, the other members of the board of directors shall promptly assist the 
attending shareholders in electing a new chair in accordance with statutory procedures, by 
agreement of a majority of the votes represented by the attending shareholders, and then 
continue the meeting. 

4. The chair shall allow ample opportunity during the meeting for explanation and discussion of 
proposals and of amendments or extraordinary motions put forward by the shareholders; when 
the chair is of the opinion that a proposal has been discussed sufficiently to put it to a vote, the 
chair may announce the discussion closed and call for a vote and an adequate voting time. 

 

Article 11 

1. Before speaking, an attending shareholder must specify on a speaker's slip the subject of the 
speech, his/her shareholder account number (or attendance card number), and account name. 
The order in which shareholders speak will be set by the chair. 

2. A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker's slip but does not actually speak shall 
be deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the speech does not correspond to the 
subject given on the speaker's slip, the spoken content shall prevail. 

3. Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not speak more than twice on the same 
proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes. If the shareholder's speech violates the 
rules or exceeds the scope of the agenda item, the chair may terminate the speech. 

4. When an attending shareholder is speaking, other shareholders may not speak or interrupt unless 
they have sought and obtained the consent of the chair and the shareholder that has the floor; 
the chair shall stop any violation. 

5. When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a shareholders 
meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on the same proposal.  

6. After an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in person or direct relevant 
personnel to respond. 
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7. A video shareholders' meetings is convened and shareholders who participate by video may, after 
the chairman announces to call the meeting, until the announcement of the adjournment of the 
meeting, ask questions in words on the video platform of the shareholders' meeting, and not 
exceed two questions on each proposal are allowed, two hundred words per each and is not 
applicable for provisions of items 1 to 5.  

8. If the questions asked in the preceding paragraph do not violate the provisions or do not exceed 
the scope of the proposal, it is advisable to disclose the questions on the video platform of the 
shareholders' meeting. 

 

Article 12 

1. Voting at a shareholders meeting shall be calculated based the number of shares. 

2. With respect to resolutions of shareholders meetings, the number of shares held by a shareholder 
with no voting rights shall not be calculated as part of the total number of issued shares. When 
a shareholder is an interested party in relation to an agenda item, and there is the likelihood that 
such a relationship would prejudice the interests of this Corporation, that shareholder may not 
vote on that item, and may not exercise voting rights as proxy for any other shareholder. 

3. The number of shares for which voting rights may not be exercised under the preceding 
paragraph shall not be calculated as part of the voting rights represented by attending 
shareholders. 

4. With the exception of a trust enterprise or a shareholder services agent approved by the 
competent securities authority, when one person is concurrently appointed as proxy by two or 
more shareholders, the voting rights represented by that proxy may not exceed 3 percent of the 
voting rights represented by the total number of issued shares. If that percentage is exceeded, 
the voting rights in excess of that percentage shall not be included in the calculation. 

 

Article 13 

1. A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except when the shares are 
restricted shares or are deemed non-voting shares under Article 179, paragraph 2 of the 
Company Act. 

2. When the Corporation holds a shareholders meeting, it shall adopt exercise of voting rights by 
electronic means and may adopt exercise of voting rights by correspondence. When voting 
rights are exercised by correspondence or electronic means, the method of exercise shall be 
specified in the shareholders meeting notice. A shareholder exercising voting rights by 
correspondence or electronic means will be deemed to have attended the meeting in person, but 
to have waived his/her rights with respect to the extraordinary motions and amendments to 
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original proposals of that meeting; it is therefore advisable that this Corporation avoid the 
submission of extraordinary motions and amendments to original proposals. 

3. A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means under 
the preceding paragraph shall deliver a written declaration of intent to this Corporation before 2 
days before the date of the shareholders meeting. When duplicate declarations of intent are 
delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail, except when a declaration is made to cancel the 
earlier declaration of intent. 

4. After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by correspondence or electronic means, in the 
event the shareholder intends to attend the shareholders meeting in person or by video 
conference, a written declaration of intent to retract the voting rights already exercised under 
the preceding paragraph shall be made known to this Corporation, by the same means by which 
the voting rights were exercised, before 2 business days before the date of the shareholders 
meeting. If the notice of retraction is submitted after that time, the voting rights already 
exercised by correspondence or electronic means shall prevail. When a shareholder has 
exercised voting rights both by correspondence or electronic means and by appointing a proxy 
to attend a shareholders meeting, the voting rights exercised by the proxy in the meeting shall 
prevail. 

5. Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in this Corporation's articles of 
incorporation, the passage of a proposal shall require an affirmative vote of a majority of the 
voting rights represented by the attending shareholders. At the time of a vote, for each proposal, 
the chair or a person designated by the chair shall first announce the total number of voting 
rights represented by the attending shareholders, followed by a poll of the shareholders. After 
the conclusion of the meeting, on the same day it is held, the results for each proposal, based on 
the numbers of votes for and against and the number of abstentions, shall be entered into the 
MOPS. When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall present the 
amended or alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide the order in 
which they will be put to a vote. When any one among them is passed, the other proposals will 
then be deemed rejected, and no further voting shall be required. 

6. Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be appointed by the 
chair, provided that all monitoring personnel shall be shareholders of this Corporation. Vote 
counting for shareholders meeting proposals or elections shall be conducted in public at the 
place of the shareholders meeting. Immediately after vote counting has been completed, the 
results of the voting, including the statistical tallies of the numbers of votes, shall be announced 
on-site at the meeting, and a record made of the vote. 

7. The Company convenes a video Shareholders’ Meeting, and the shareholders who participate by 
video shall vote on the proposals and the voting on the election proposals through the video 
platform after the Chairman announces to convene the meeting, and shall complete the voting 
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before the Chairman announces the end of the voting, and shall be deemed to abstain when time 
out.  

8. When the shareholders' meeting is convened by video conference, and the voting and election 
results shall be counted in one lump sum after the chairman announces the voting.  

9. When the Company convenes a video-assisted shareholders' meeting, a shareholder who has 
registered to attend the shareholders' meeting by video in accordance with Article 6 shall, if he 
wishes to attend the entity shareholders' meeting in person, shall deregister the registration in the 
same manner two days before the shareholders' meeting;  

10. A person who exercises the right to vote in writing or electronically, without revoking his 
expression of intent, and participates in the shareholders' meeting by video, shall not exercise 
the right to vote on the original proposal or propose amendments to the original proposal or to 
exercise the right to exercise the right to vote on the original proposal except for provisional 
motions. 

 

Article 14 

1. The election of directors at a shareholders meeting shall be held in accordance with the applicable 
election and appointment rules adopted by this Corporation, and the voting results shall be 
announced on-site immediately, including the names of those elected as directors and the 
numbers of votes with which they were elected and the list of failing to be elected directors and 
supervisors and the number of voting rights obtained 

2. The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be sealed with the 
signatures of the monitoring personnel and kept in proper custody for at least 1 year. If, 
however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the ballots 
shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation. 

 

Article 15 

1. Matters relating to the resolutions of a shareholders meeting shall be recorded in the meeting 
minutes. The meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the chair of the meeting and a copy 
distributed to each shareholder within 20 days after the conclusion of the meeting. The meeting 
minutes may be produced and distributed in electronic form. 

2. This Corporation may distribute the meeting minutes of the preceding paragraph by means of a 
public announcement made through the MOPS.  

3. The meeting minutes shall accurately record the year, month, day, and place of the meeting, the 
chair's full name, the methods by which resolutions were adopted, and a summary of the 
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deliberations and their results (include summary of volts), once if the election for directors, the 
number of votes for each candidate should be disclosed and shall be retained for the duration of 
the existence of this Corporation. 

4. Where a shareholders' meeting is convened by video, the minutes of the shareholders' meeting shall, 
in addition to the matters to be recorded in accordance with the preceding provisions, and shall 
record the time from the beginning of the shareholders' meeting, the method of convening the 
meeting, the name of the chairman and the minute taker, and the handling method and handling 
situation of the video conference platform or the participation of the video conference platform 
or by video in the event of an blockage due to natural disasters, incidents or other force majeure 
circumstances.  

5. The Company shall convene a video shareholders' meeting, besides that in accordance with the 
provisions of the preceding paragraph, and shall indicate in the proceedings that there will be 
alternative measures provided by shareholders who have difficulties participating in the 
shareholders by video. 

 

Article 16 

1. On the day of a shareholders’ meeting, the Corporation shall compile in the prescribed format a 
statistical statement of the number of shares and the number of shares attended by shareholders 
in writing or electronically obtained by solicitors through solicitation and the number of shares 
represented by proxies, and shall make an express disclosure of the same at the place of the 
shareholders’ meeting. When the shareholders' meeting is convened by video conference, the 
Company shall upload the above information to the video platform of the shareholders' meeting 
at least 30 minutes prior to the meeting and continue to disclose it until the end of the meeting. 

1.1 When the Company convenes a video Shareholders’ Meeting and announces to convene the 
meeting, the total number of shareholders' shares present shall be disclosed on the video 
platform. The same shall apply if the total number of shares and voting rights of the 
shareholders present at the meeting is also counted. 

2. If matters put to a resolution at a shareholders meeting constitute material information under 
applicable laws or regulations or under Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation (or GreTai 
Securities Market) regulations, this Corporation shall upload the content of such resolution to 
the MOPS within the prescribed time period. 

 

Article 17 

1. Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders meeting shall wear identification cards or 
arm bands. The chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain order at the 
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meeting place. When proctors or security personnel help maintain order at the meeting place, 
they shall wear an identification card or armband bearing the word "Proctor." At the place of a 
shareholders meeting, if a shareholder attempts to speak through any device other than the 
public address equipment set up by this Corporation, the chair may prevent the shareholder 
from so doing. 

2. When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the chair's correction, obstructing 
the proceedings and refusing to heed calls to stop, the chair may direct the proctors or security 
personnel to escort the shareholder from the meeting. 

 

Article 18 

1. When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time considerations. If a 
force majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting temporarily suspended and 
announce a time when, in view of the circumstances, the meeting will be resumed. 

2. If the meeting venue is no longer available for continued use and not all of the items (including 
extraordinary motions) on the meeting agenda have been addressed, the shareholders meeting 
may adopt a resolution to resume the meeting at another venue. A resolution may be adopted at 
a shareholders meeting to defer or resume the meeting within 5 days in accordance with Article 
182 of the Company Act. 

 

Article 19 

If the shareholders' meeting is convened by video meeting, the Company shall immediately disclose 
the voting results of each proposal and the election results on the video platform of the 
shareholders' meeting in accordance with the regulations after the voting is completed, and shall 
continue to disclose them for at least 15 minutes after the chairman announces the adjournment of 
the meeting. 

 

Article 20 

When the Company convenes a video shareholders' meeting, the Chairman and the minute taker 
shall be at the same place, and the Chairman shall announce the address of that place at the time of 
the meeting. 
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Article 21 

1. If the shareholders' meeting is convened by video conference, the Company may provide the 
shareholders with a simple connection test before the meeting, and provide relevant services in 
real time before and during the meeting to assist in handling the technical issues of 
communication.  

2. If the shareholders' meeting is convened by video meeting, the Chairman shall, at the time of 
announcing the meeting, separately announce that, besides the matter stipulated in Article 44-20(4) 
of the 
Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies, which 
does not require an extension or continuation of the meeting, the provisions of Article 182 of the 
Company Act shall not apply to the date of postponement or renewal of the meeting before the 
Chairman announces the adjournment of the meeting due to natural disasters, events or other 
force majeure circumstances that cause blockages to the participation of the video conference 
platform or by video participation for more than 30 minutes.  

3. The meeting shall be postponed or renewed in the event of the preceding paragraph, and 
shareholders who have not registered to participate in the original shareholders' meeting by video 
shall not participate in the postponement or renewal of the meeting.  

4. The number of shares, exercised voting rights and voting rights of shareholders who have 
registered to participate in the original shareholders' meeting by video and completed their 
registration in accordance with the provisions of subsection 2 shall be included in the total 
number of shares, voting rights and voting rights of the shareholders present at the original 
shareholders' meeting.  

5. When postponing or renewing the shareholders’ meeting in accordance with the provisions of 
paragraph 2, there is no need to repeat the discussion and resolution of the proposal that has 
completed the voting and counting the votes, and announces the voting results or the list of 
directors and supervisors elected.  

6. If the Company convenes a video-assisted shareholders' meeting and in case it cannot be running 
as paragraph 2, once the total number of shares present deduct the shares in video still reaches 
the statutory quota for the shareholders' meeting, the shareholders' meeting shall continue and no 
need to postpone or renew the meeting in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 2.  

7. In the event of a meeting that should continue in the preceding paragraph, the number of shares 
present at a shareholders' meeting shall be included in the total number of shares of the 
shareholders present, but all the proposals of the shareholders' meeting shall be deemed to be 
abstained. 

8. The Company shall postpone or renew the meeting in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 
2, and shall handle the relevant pre-operations in accordance with the provisions of Item 7 of 
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Article 44-20 of the Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public 
Companies, in accordance with the date of the original shareholders' meeting and the provisions 
of each article.  

9. For the period specified in the second paragraph of Article 12 and The third paragraph of Article 
13 of the Rules for the Use of Power of Attorney by the Company attending the Shareholders' 
Meeting, and Item 2 of Article 44-5, Article 44-15 and Item 1 of Article 44-17 of the Guidelines 
for the Handling of Shares of Publicly Issued Stock Companies, the Company shall postpone or 
renew the date of the shareholders' meeting in accordance with the provisions of Article 2. 

 

Article 22 

When the Company convenes a video shareholders' meeting, it shall provide appropriate alternative 
measures to shareholders who will have difficulties in attending the shareholders by video. 

 

Article 23 

These Rules, and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after adoption by shareholders 
meetings. 
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Section I General Provisions 
 

Article 1 The Corporation shall be incorporated, as a company limited by shares, under the 
Company Law of the Republic of China, and its name shall be 盈正豫順電子股份有

限公司 in Chinese, and ABLEREX ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. in English. 
 

Article 2 The scope of business of the Corporation shall be as follows: 
1. CB01020  Office Machines Manufacturing  
2. CC01010  Electric Power Supply, Electric Transmission and Power 

Distribution and Machinery Manufacturing  
3. CB01010  Machinery and Equipment Manufacturing  
4. CB01990  Other Machinery Manufacturing Not Elsewhere Classified 
5. CC01060  Wired Communication Equipment and Apparatus Manufacturing 
6. CC01070  Telecommunication Equipment and Apparatus Manufacturing 
7. CC01080  Electronic Parts and Components Manufacturing 
8. CC01110  Computers and Computing Peripheral Equipments Manufacturing 
9. CE01010  Precision Instruments Manufacturing 
10. F113010  Wholesale of Machinery 
11. F113030  Wholesale of Precision Instruments 
12. F113050  Wholesale of Computing and Business Machinery Equipment 
13. F113070  Wholesale of Telecom Instruments 
14. F118010  Wholesale of Computer Software 
15. F119010  Wholesale of Electronic Materials 
16. F213030  Retail sale of Computing and Business Machinery Equipment 
17. F213040  Retail Sale of Precision Instruments 
18. F213060  Retail Sale of Telecom Instruments 
19. F213080  Retail Sale of Machinery and Equipment 
20. F218010  Retail Sale of Computer Software 
21. F219010  Retail Sale of Electronic Materials 
22. F401010  International Trade 
23. I501010  Product Designing 
24. JA02010  Electric Appliance and Audiovisual Electric Products Repair Shops 
25. E601010  Electric Appliance Construction 
26. F113110  Wholesale of Batteries  
27. F213110  Retail Sale of Batteries 
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28. CC01090  Manufacture of Batteries and Accumulators 
29. JE01010  Rental and Leasing。 
30. E606010  Power Consuming Equipment Inspecting and Maintenance 
31. ZZ99999  All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by law, 

except those that are subject to special approval. 
 

Article 3 The Corporation shall have its head office in New Taipei (City), Taiwan, Republic of 
China, to setup representative and branch offices at various locations within and 
without the territory of the Republic of China, wherever and whenever the Corporation 
deems it necessary to carry out any or all of its activities by resolution of the board. 
 

Article 4 For business needs, the Corporation may provide endorsement and guarantee to the 
other companies. The operations shall be in accordance with the Operational 
Procedures for Endorsements and Guarantees. 
 

Article 5 The total amount of the Corporation’s reinvestment shall not be subject to the 
restriction of not more than forty percent of the Corporation’s paid-up capital as 
provided in Article 13 of the Company Law. Any matters regarding the reinvestment 
shall be resolved in accordance with the resolutions of the Board of Directors.  
 

Article 6 Public announcements of the Corporation shall be made in accordance with the 
Company Law and other relevant rules and regulations of the Republic of China.  
 

Section II Capital Stock 

Article 7 The total capital stock of the Corporation shall be in the amount of 2,000,000,000 New 
Taiwan Dollars, divided into 200,000,000 shares, at ten New Taiwan Dollars each, and 
may be paid-up in installments. Unissued of the total capital shares, will authorize the 
Board to issued split. 
Unissued of the total capital shares, will authorize the Board to issued split. 
 

Article 8 The share certificates of the Corporation shall all be name-bearing share certificates and 
must be affixed with the signature or personal seals of the director representing the 
company. And issued must be in accordance with the Company Law and relevant rules 
and regulations of the Republic of China. 
For the new shares to be issued by this Corporation offering, may print a consolidated 
share certificate representing the total number of the new shares to be issued at the 
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same time of issue, or may be exempted from printing any share certificate for the 
shares issued, other securities are the same. 
For the shares to be issued in accordance with the provision of the preceding 
Paragraph, this Corporation shall appoint a centralized securities custody enterprise/ 
institution to placed, or to make recordation of the issue of such shares. 
 

Article 9 Registration for transfer of shares shall be suspended sixty (60) days immediately before 
the date of regular meeting of shareholders, and thirty (30) days immediately before the 
date of any special meeting of shareholders, or within five (5) days before the day on 
which dividend, bonus, or any other benefit is scheduled to be paid by the Corporation. 
 

Article 10 All administration of shareholder services shall follow the “Regulations Governing the 
Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies” unless specified 
otherwise by law and securities regulations. 
 

Article 11 The regulation of shareholder services administration shall comply with relevant 
provisions of the Company Law and relevant rules and regulations of the Republic of 
China. 
 

Section III Shareholders' Meeting 

Article 12 Shareholders’ meetings of the Corporation are of two types, namely: (1) regular 
meetings and (2) special meetings. Regular meetings shall be convened, by the Board of 
Directors, within six (6) months after the close of each fiscal year. Special meetings shall 
be convened, by the Board of Directors, in accordance with the relevant laws, rules and 
regulations of the Republic of China. 
Shareholders’ meetings convene notice may be given in electronic form, the convene 
procedure shall follow Article 172 of the Company Act. 
 

Article 12-1 
 

When the shareholders' meeting is held, it may be held by video conference or other 
ways announced by the central competent authority. 
When a shareholders meeting is held, if it is a video conference, the shareholders who 
participate in the meeting by video conference will be deemed to have attended the 
meeting in person. 
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Article 13 If a shareholder is unable to attend a meeting, may appoint a proxy to attend a 
shareholders' meeting in his/her/its behalf by executing a power of attorney printed by 
the company stating therein the scope of power authorized to the proxy. Regulations 
for proxy to attend shall be in accordance with Article 177,177-1 & 177-2 of the 
Company Act. And operations must be in accordance with Regulations Governing the 
Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies. 
 

Article 14 Each share of stock shall be entitled to one vote. But it had no right to vote, conform 
restricted or Article 179 of Company Act of the circumstances. 
 

Article 15 Resolutions at a shareholders' meeting shall, unless otherwise provided for in Company 
Act, be adopted by a majority vote of the shareholders present, who represent more 
than one-half of the total number of voting shares. 
 

Article 16 Resolutions adopted at a shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of the 
meeting, which shall be affixed with the signature or seal of the chairman of the 
meeting and shall be distributed to all shareholders of the company within twenty (20) 
days after the close of the meeting. 
The preparation and distribution of the minutes of shareholders' meeting as required in 
the preceding Paragraph may effected by means of electronic transmission. 
With regard to a company offering its shares to the public, the distribution of the 
minutes of shareholders' meeting as required in Paragraph One of this Article may be 
effected by means of a public notice. 
The minutes of shareholders' meeting shall record the date and place , the number of  
the shareholders present, total number of shares represented by the shareholders , total 
number of the voting rights at the meeting, the name of the chairman, the method of 
adopting resolutions, and a summary of the essential points of the proceedings and the 
results of the meeting. The minutes shall be kept persistently throughout the life of the 
company. 
The attendance list bearing the signatures of shareholders present at the meeting and 
the powers of attorney of the proxies shall be kept by the company for a minimum 
period of at least one year. However, if a lawsuit has been instituted by any shareholder 
in accordance with the provisions of Article 189 hereof, the minutes of the 
shareholders' meeting involved shall be kept by the company until the legal proceedings 
of the foregoing lawsuit have been concluded. 
 

Article 17 The chairman of the board of directors shall be appointed in accordance with Article 
182-1 and Article 208, Paragraph 3 of Company Act. 
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Article 17-1 If this corporation needs to cancel shares have been issued in public, shall to the 
meeting of shareholders’ for review and approval by a resolution, and to file an 
application with the competent authority. This Article can’t be changed whether during 
the emerging stock period or share have been exchange-listed and OTC-listed. 
 

Section IV Directors and Audit Committee 

Article 18 The Corporation shall have seven to nine directors. The number of directors is 
authorized by the board of directors for a term of three years. They shall be elected by 
the shareholders' meeting from among the persons with disposing capacity. If they are 
re-elected, they may be extended. Until the re-election of the directors on board. When 
the directors are short of one-third of the total number of directors, they should be 
re-elected immediately. 
In accordance with the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act, the Company has 
independent directors in the number of directors in the preceding paragraph, and the 
number of independent directors is at least three. 
If the board chairperson and the general manager or a person holding an equivalent 
position of the company are the same person or are spouses or relatives within the first 
degree of kinship, the company shall appoint not less than 4 independent directors by 
31 December 2023. However, if the number of board seats exceeds 15, the number of 
independent directors so appointed shall be not than less than 5, and a majority of the 
directors may not serve concurrently as an employee or managerial officer. If the 
company's paid-in capital is less than NT$600 million, however, it is allowed to 
complete the appointment by 31 December 2025. 
Directors (include independent directors) shall be elected by adopting candidate 
nomination system as specified in Article 192-1 of the Company Act. Independent 
directors shall be elected in accordance with the rules prescribed by the competent 
authority of securities.  
The total shareholding ratio of all directors of the company shall be handled in 
accordance with the provisions of the competent securities authority. 
 

Article 18-1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Company’s Directors shall be elected through cumulative voting, each share has 
the same voting rights equal to the number of Directors to be elected, and a 
shareholder may cast all his/her voting rights to one candidate or among several 
candidates; those candidates receiving more voting rights shall be elected as Directors.  
If there is a need to amend the elect rules about Directors and Supervisors, shall be 
comply in accordance with Article 172 of Company Act, and shall be enumerated and 
explained a comparison chart on the newly amended and the old clauses in the notice 
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Article 18-2 
 

to convene the shareholders meeting. 
In accordance with the provisions of Article 14 paragraph 4 of the Securities Exchange 
Law, the Company shall set up an audit committee from the time of the re-election of 
the eighth director. The audit committee shall be composed of all independent 
directors, the number of which shall not be less than three, one of whom shall be the 
convener and at least one person should have accounting or financial expertise. The 
provisions of the Articles of Association, the Securities Exchange Act, the Company 
Law and other laws for the supervisor are permitted by the Audit Committee. When the 
audit committee's term of office, powers, rules of procedure, and exercise of powers, 
the company shall provide resources and other matters, and set the rules of the audit 
committee. 
 

Article 19 The board of directors shall elect a chairman of the board directors from among the 
directors by a majority vote at a meeting attended by over two-thirds of the directors 
and Vice chairman can be elected from each other in the same way. The chairman of 
the board of directors shall internally preside the shareholders' meeting, the meeting of 
the board of directors; and shall externally represent the Corporation. 
 

Article 20 Unless as otherwise provided for in Company Act, the meeting of the board of 
directors shall be attended by a majority members, the resolution shall be adopted by a 
majority of the directors at the meeting. The meeting of the board of directors shall be 
convened by chairman, at least once per quarter.  
In case a director appoints another director to attend a meeting of the board of 
directors in his/her behalf, he/she shall, in each time, issue a written proxy and state 
therein the scope of authority with reference to the subjects to be discussed at the 
meeting. 
A director may accept the appointment to act as the proxy referred to in the preceding 
Paragraph of one other director only. 
In case a meeting of the board of directors is proceeded by via visual communication 
network, then the directors taking part in such a visual communication meeting shall be 
deemed to have attended the meeting in person. 
 

Article 20-1 In calling a meeting of the board of directors, a notice setting forth therein the 
subject(s) to be discussed at the meeting shall be given to each director no later than 7 
days prior to the scheduled meeting date. However, in the case of emergency, the 
meeting may be convened at any time. The notice set forth may be sent it by means of 
written, e-mail or fax to each director and supervisor. 
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Article 21 Power and authority of the board of directors: 
1. Deliberation the business policy and the long-term develop plan,  
2. Deliberation and Supervise annual business plan, 
3. To deliberate the budget and financial statements, 
4. To deliberate the Corporation has a need to reduce and to increase its capital 
stock, 
5. To deliberate the surplus earning distribution or loss off-setting proposals, 
6. To deliberate the major contracts, 
7. To deliberate the change of this Article of incorporation, 
8. To deliberate the organization regulations and major rules of systems of this  
    corporation, 
9. To deliberate the major capital expenses, 
10. To deliberate the establishment or withdraw of branch office, 
11. Appointment and removal of president and vice president of this Corporation, 
12. To deliberate the major interested party transactions,   
13. To execute the matters of the resolutions of the shareholders' meeting, 
14. The other power in accordance with Company Act. 
 

Article 21-1 In the course of a director executing his or her duties, this Corporation shall pay the 
remuneration for it. The remuneration shall be consideration about the level of 
participation, value of contribution, industry level of domestic and foreign, will 
authorize the Board for approval by a resolution. 
 

Article 21-2 The Corporation may buy liability insurance for directors. The board of directors may 
be authorized to resolutions about insure amounts and matters. 
 

Article 22 Unless otherwise provided for in Company Act and Articles of incorporation, 
resolutions of the Board of Directors shall be adopted by a majority of the directors at a 
meeting attended by a majority of the directors. Minutes shall be taken of the 
proceedings of the meeting of the board of directors, which shall be affixed with the 
signature or seal of the chairman of the meeting and shall be distributed to all directors 
of the company within twenty (20) days after the close of the meeting. Minutes with the 
attendance list bearing the signatures of directors present at the meeting and the powers 
of attorney of the proxies shall be kept by the company for a minimum period of at 
least one year. Matters pertaining to election or discharge of directors, shall be 
described in the shareholders' meeting notice, and shall not be brought up as 
extemporary motions. 
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Article 23 (Be deleted) 
 

Section V Management of the Corporation 

Article 24 The Corporation may nomination one President by chairman. And Corporation 
President may appoint one or more Vice President(s) or such other officers. Article 29 
of Company Act shall apply, mutatis mutandis, to the appointment, discharge and 
remuneration of all the managerial personnel set forth in the preceding Paragraph. 
 

Section VI Accounting 

Article 25 At the close of each fiscal year, the board of directors shall prepare the following 
statements and records and shall forward the same to Audit Committee for their 
auditing not later than the 30th day prior to the meeting date of a general meeting of 
shareholders: 
1.  The business report; 
2.  The financial statements; and 
3.  The surplus earning distribution or loss off-setting proposals etc. 
The board of directors shall submit the various financial statements and records 
prepared, with the Audit Committee’s auditing report for, by it to the general meeting 
of shareholders for its ratification. 
 

Article 25-1 If the Company have surplus earnings after close of fiscal year, shall be according to the 
performance of the year to set 6 to 10 percent of its reserves as employees' 
compensation, and not more than 2 percent of it as directors’ and supervisors’ 
remuneration. However, the company's accumulated losses shall have been covered. 
The directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration must be paid in cash. 
The Company may, by a resolution adopted by a majority vote at a meeting of board of 
directors attended by two-thirds of the total number of directors, have the profit 
distributable as employees' compensation in the preceding two paragraphs distributed 
in the form of shares or in cash; and in addition thereto a report of such distribution 
shall be submitted to the shareholders' meeting. 
Qualification requirements of employees, including the employees of subsidiaries of the 
company meeting certain specific requirements. 
 

Article 26 This Corporation shall not pay dividends or bonuses when there is no profit shall as of 
the end of the preceding fiscal year. After all taxes and dues have been paid and its 
losses incurred in previous years have been covered and at the time of allocating surplus 
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profits, first set aside ten percent of such profits as a legal reserve. However when the 
legal reserve amounts to the authorized capital, this shall not apply. Aside from the 
aforesaid legal reserve, the company may, under this Articles of Incorporation or 
related Law, set or reversal aside another sum as special reserve. Earnings available for 
distribution must be including the accumulated undistributed earnings of previous 
years. 
 

Article 26-1 The shareholders’ surplus are paid in the form of cash or shares.  
The ratio and kind of the profits distribution, shall taking into consideration future 
funds demand and long-term operational plan factors. After considerations about the 
corporation operation condition, shall be take care about shareholders' rights, balance 
dividends policy and funds demand plan, the board of directors to make proposal for 
distribution of profits to the meeting of shareholders’ for adjust and approval by a 
resolution. 
 
The Company authorizes the board of directors to have a majority resolution with 
more than two-thirds of the directors. All or part of the surplus would be distributed in 
cash and reported to the shareholders' meeting. 
 
In case considering the financial, business or operational factors of this Corporation, or 
there is no profit for distribution in a certain year or even there is a surplus with the 
amount of earnings is much lower than the actual distribution of the company’s 
previous year’s surplus this Corporation may allocate a portion or all of its reserves for 
distribution in accordance with relevant laws or regulations or the orders of the 
authorities in charge. 
 

Section VII Supplemental Provisions 

Article 27 In regard to all matters not provided for in these Articles of Incorporation, the 
Company Act of the Republic of China shall govern. 
 

Article 28 The Issue date was on April 16, 1998, 
the first Amendment was approved on August 9, 2001,  
the second Amendment on March 28, 2002,  
the third Amendment on April 12, 2002, 
the fourth Amendment on, 427 
the fifth Amendment on Mar 27, 2007 
the sixth Amendment on March 27, 2007 
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the seventh Amendment on May 22, 2008 
the eighth Amendment on May 18, 2009 
the ninth Amendment on Nov 17, 2009 
the tenth Amendment on May 26, 2010 
the eleventh Amendment on Jun 9, 2011 
the twelfth Amendment on Jun 18, 2012 
the thirteenth Amendment on Jun 23, 2014 
the fourteenth Amendment on June 21, 2016 
the fifteenth Amendment of Jun 18, 2019 
the sixteenth Amendment of Aug 18, 2021 
the seventeenth Amendment of Jun 23, 2022 
the eighteenth Amendment of June 27, 2023 
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